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Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (appointed as a member of the Nomination
committee on 14 January 2015)

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming

Mr. Cheng Tai Po

Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman (appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee on 14 January 2015)

Mr. Fung Yat Sang (resigned as a member of the Nomination
committee on 16 October 2014)

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (resigned as a member of the Nomination
Committee on 16 October 2014)
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The shares of Man Sang International Limited (the “Company”) have
been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 1997 under the stock code of 938.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) underwent a series of group restructuring to
rationalize the Group’s shareholding structure for the purpose of a spin-
off and separate listing of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (“MS
Jewellery”), a former wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company engaging
in the Pearls and Jewellery Business.

On 25 June 2014, MS Jewellery submitted a listing application to the
Stock Exchange for a separate listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange by way of introduction, through a distribution in specie by the
Company of the entire issued share capital of MS Jewellery (the “Spin-
off”). The Spin-off was subsequently completed on 17 October 2014
upon the successful listing of MS Jewellery, and MS Jewellery and its
subsidiaries (the “MSJ Group”) were no longer subsidiaries of the Group.

Following the completion of the Spin-off, the Group no longer engages
in the Pearls and Jewellery Business. Going forward, the Group will
continue to focus on the development, sales and leasing of properties in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas.
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The Group has, together with a few other major pearls and jewellery
companies in the PRC, developed a large-scale international pearls and
jewellery trading platform, which is known as China Pearls and Jewellery
City ("CP&J City") and is located in zhuji of Zhejiang, the PRC, since 2006.
CP&J City is designed to be the world’s largest pearls and jewellery
trading platform which provides facilities for processing, manufacturing,
research and development, and trading of pearls and jewellery products,
as well as related supporting services including logistics, electronic
commerce, exhibition and convention, accommodation, catering and
entertainment.

The Group also holds Man Sang Industrial City, which is located in
Shenzhen, the PRC, for leasing and there are 27 blocks of buildings with
total gross floor area of approximately 76,000 square meters within Man
Sang Industrial City. As of 31 March 2015, the occupancy rate of Man
Sang Industrial City is over 99%.

The Group is proactively considering to expand its footprints in different
regions within the PRC, especially in the provincial capital cities where
the demand for residential/commercial properties are enormous, using
the development concept and experience of the CP&J City. Apart from
the PRC property market, the Group will also closely monitor market
opportunities in Hong Kong and overseas to supplement its existing
projects through onshore and/or offshore mergers and acquisitions, so
as to create greater returns for the shareholders.
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Financial Highlights
$ 55 4 2

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FEHBRER
Year ended 31 March
BZ3A3MALLEE
Consolidated Income Statement maWEE 2015 2014 Change
2015 % 2014 F BE %
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FHIT) 232,845 351,380 (118,535) -33.7%
Gross profit (HK$'000) EM(FHET) 117,446 145,277 (27,831) -19.2%
Profit before income tax (HK$'000) BRETISBIRTR A (&) 62,517 137,376 (74,859) -54.5%
Profit for the year (HK$'000) RERHEM(FAT) 16,336 85,596 (69,260) -80.9%
Profit attributable to the equity holders — ZX A B A% 5 fE (4 34 7
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#T) 10,979 68,463 (57,484) -84.0%
Basic earnings per share (HK cent) BRRERAF (BIL) 0.84 5.35 4.51) -84.3%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cent) EREEERF OBL) 0.84 5.29 (4.45) -84.1%
As at 31 March
M3HA31H
Consolidated Balance Sheet KEBEAER 2015 2014 Change
2015 % 2014 F #E %
Net assets (HK$'000) BEFE(FAT) 879,510 1,073,708 (194,198) -18.1%
Cash and bank balances (HK$'000) B RIRITEH(THETL) 364,265 392,355 (28,090) 7.2%
Borrowings (HK$'000) B8 (F#m) 175,600 301,000 (125,400) -41.7%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) R ER (FHT) 728,081 927,636 (199,555) -21.5%
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
FEBKELR
2015 2014 Change
2015 F 2014 4F 25
Gross profit margin® FEFEO 50.4% 41.3%  +9.1 percentage points
+9.MEE B
Return on equity@ fRERE © ElHR @ 1.5% 7.4% -5.9 percentage points
SOMEE D
Current ratio (times)® MENLLE (5)0 1.2 1.4
Gearing ratio® BERBELERO 0.20 0.28

(1) Gross profit margin represents gross profit divided by revenue of the (1)  EFIRIBEAEBEFIBRAWA -

Group.

(2)  Return on equity is defined as the ratio of profit attributable to equity  (2)  IRE&E & BRI AR 2 7 I FE (k5 F B A
holders of the Company to total equity attributable to equity holders of the NEIR R B -
company.

(3)  Current ratio is defined as the ratio of total current assets to total current  (3) REBLRIERBDEELERIARB A BEESE -
liabilities.

(4)  Gearing ratio represents total borrowings, including current and non-  (4) EBABGBLRIEEELE (BERBDEIERS
current portion, divided by total equity. B9 ) BRAERESR -
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Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Li
RABR IR A TRAE
(Stock Code: 1468)

Photo taken in the Listing Ceremony of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited

PENRAEREIERER AR EHEES

25June 2014

Submission of a listing application to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for a separate listing of the pearls and jewellery business of
the Group on the Main Board

25 July 2014
2014 Annual General Meeting and Special General Meeting
at The Royal Garden

17 October 2014

Completion of spin-off and separate listing of the pearls
and jewellery business of the Group on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

3 March 2015
Completion of construction of two residential apartments in
China Pearls and Jewellery City located in Zhuji of Zhejiang, the PRC

16 March 2015
Completion of disposal of the property located at
19th Floor, No. 39 Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Chairman’s Statement
F R

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present the results
of Man Sang International Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015 (“FY15").

PERFORMANCE

During the past financial year, the Group underwent a series of group
restructuring to rationalize the Group's shareholding structure for
the purpose of a spin-off and separate listing of Man Sang Jewellery
Holdings Limited (“MS Jewellery”), a former wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company engaging in the Pearls and Jewellery Business.

On 25 June 2014, MS Jewellery submitted a listing application to the
Stock Exchange for a separate listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange by way of introduction, through a distribution in specie by the
Company of the entire issued share capital of MS Jewellery (the “Spin-
off”). The Spin-off was subsequently completed on 17 October 2014
upon the successful listing of MS Jewellery and MS Jewellery and its
subsidiaries (the “MSJ Group”) were no longer subsidiaries of the Group.

Following the completion of the Spin-off, the Group no longer engages
in the Pearls and Jewellery Business. Going forward, the Group will
continue to focus on the development, sales and leasing of properties in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas.
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Chairman’s Statement
EN %143

The cessation of the pearls and jewellery business upon the completion
of the Spin-off, coupled with the incurrence of professional fees in
relation to the Spin-off, have contributed significantly to a substantial
decrease in the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$11.0 million and basic earnings per share of 0.84 HK cents in FY15,
as compared to a profit of HK$68.5 million and basic earnings per share
of 5.35 HK cents for the year ended 31 March 2014 (“FY14").

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to focus on the development, sales and leasing
of properties in Mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas. The Group is
proactively considering to expand its footprints in different regions within
the PRC, especially in the provincial capital cities where the demand for
residential/commercial properties are enormous, using the development
concept and experience of the CP&J City.

Apart from the PRC property market, the Group will also closely monitor
market opportunities in Hong Kong and overseas to supplement
its existing projects through onshore and/or offshore mergers and
acquisitions, so as to create greater returns for the shareholders.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to
all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for their
long-term attention and support to the Group over the years. | would
also like to thank the senior management team and all staff of the Group
for their dedication and hard work to the Group during the past year.

Cheng Tai Po
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 May 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Man Sang International Limited
(the “Company”) is pleased to report the results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2015 (“FY15"). During FY15, the consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$11.0 million (year ended 31 March
2014 ("FY14"). HK$68.5 million), representing a decrease of 83.9% as
compared with that in FY14. Basic earnings per share was 0.84 HK cents
(FY14: 5.35 HK cents), representing a decrease of 84.3% as compared
with that in FY14.

SPIN-OFF & SEPARATE LISTING OF THE PEARLS
AND JEWELLERY BUSINESS

During FY15, the Group underwent a series of group restructuring to
rationalize the Group’s shareholding structure for the purpose of a spin-
off and separate listing of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited ("MS
Jewellery”), a former wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company engaging
in the Pearls and Jewellery Business.

On 25 June 2014, MS Jewellery submitted a listing application to the
Stock Exchange for a separate listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange by way of introduction, through a distribution in specie by the
Company of the entire issued share capital of MS Jewellery (the “Spin-
off”). The Spin-off was subsequently completed on 17 October 2014
upon the successful listing of MS Jewellery and MS Jewellery and its
subsidiaries (the “MSJ Group”) were no longer subsidiaries of the Group.

Following the completion of the Spin-off, the Group no longer engages
in the Pearls and Jewellery Business. Going forward, the Group will
continue to focus on the development, sales and leasing of properties in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Rental income generated from the investment properties of the Group
continued to grow as a result of the improvement in rental rates during
FY15. The Group is in the process of completing the construction of a
commercial complex in China Pearls and Jewellery City (“CP&J City")
which is expected to be completed in late 2015. Thereafter, the Group
will develop a hotel which represents the last building construction of
phase 1 of the CP&J City, however, the timing of which has yet to be
determined.

Besides, the Group is also planning to roll out phase 2 of the
development of CP&J City. The Group is in the process of negotiating
with the local government about the development plan and the
proposed acquisition is subject to auction/tender processes. It is
preliminarily proposed that phase 2 of CP&J City will comprise residential
apartments, commercial buildings and a market centre, however the
development plan may be amended subject to the finalization of the
negotiation which shall be agreed upon by both the Group and the PRC
local government.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and Gross Profit
Property Segment

Revenue from the Property Segment was HK$73.4 million (FY14: HK$82.9
million) during FY15, which comprised rental income of HK$53.4 million
(FY14: HK$43.5 million and sales of properties of HK$20.0 million (FY14:
HK$39.4 million). CP&J City continues to contribute the most to the
performance in the Property Segment, which accounted for 75.8% (FY14:
81.4%) of total revenue to the Property Segment in FY15.

Rental income increased by HK$9.9 million or 22.8% to HK$53.4 million
(FY14: HK$43.5 million) for the year as a result of the increase in rental
rates from the existing tenants. The revenue from sales of properties
mainly represented sales of residential apartments and factories in CP&J
City which were completed in prior years and has decreased by HK$19.4
million or 49.2% to HK$20.0 million (FY14: HK$39.4 million) during the
year.

Gross profit attributable to the Property Segment increased by HK$7.7
million or 15.3% to HK$57.7 million (FY14: HK$50.0 million) in FY15 as a
result of the increase in rental income with relatively higher gross profit
margin as mentioned above. The gross profit margin increased by 18.3
percentage points from 60.3% in FY14 to 78.6% in FY15, which was
mainly due to leasing business has a higher gross profit margin.

Pearl and Jewellery Segment

Revenue and gross profit from the Pearls and Jewellery Segment was
HK$159.5 million (FY14: HK$268.5 million) and HK$59.8 million (FY14:
HK$95.2 million) during the FY15. Profit for the year attributable to the
Pearls and Jewellery Segment decreased by HK$29.6 million or 94.0%
to HK$1.9 million (FY14: HK$31.5 million) during FY15. Such reduction
was primarily due to (i) the discontinuation of the Pearls and Jewellery
Segment upon the completion of the Spin-off; and (ii) the incurrence of
an one-off and non-recurring listing expenses in connection with the
listing of the shares of MS Jewellery on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Selling and Administrative Expenses (the “S&A
expenses”)

S&A expenses mainly comprised selling expenses of HK$11.4 million
(FY14: HK$19.2 million) and administrative expenses of HK$86.1 million
(FY14: HK$73.6 million). S&A expenses increased by HK$4.7 million or
5.1% to HK$97.5 million (FY14: HK$92.8 million) in FY15, which was
primarily due to the one-off and non-recurring listing expenses related
to the Spin-off during FY15.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company decreased by
HK$57.5 million or 83.9% to HK$11.0 million (FY14: HK$68.5 million) in
FY15, which was principally due to (1) a comparatively lower increment
in fair values of investment properties and investment properties under
construction during the year; (2) the incurrence of listing expenses in
relation to the Spin-off, and (3) the discontinuation of the pearls and
jewellery business of the Group since October 2014 upon completion of
the Spin-off.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s total equity, including non-controlling
interests, was HK$879.5 million (2014: HK$1,073.7 million), representing
a decrease of 18.1% from last year.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and bank balances of
HK$364.3 million (2014: HK$392.4 million). Cash and bank balances
were mainly denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars
and Chinese Renminbi. The Group’s working capital or net current
assets were HK$138.0 million (2014: HK$271.5 million). The current ratio,
represented by the current assets divided by the current liabilities, was
1.2 (2014: 1.4).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's total borrowings, which were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Chinese Renminbi, were
HK$175.6 million (2014: HK$301.0 million) and were interest-bearing. The
Group does not currently use any derivatives to manage interest rate
risk. Gearing ratio, representing total borrowings divided by total equity,
was 0.20 (2014: 0.28).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had available banking facilities of
HK$185.0 million (2014: HK$243.0 million) with various banks, of which
the unused banking facilities amounted to HK$45.0 million (2014
HK$55.4 million). With the committed unused banking facilities in place
and available cash and cash equivalents, the Group has adequate
financial resources to meet the anticipated future liquidity requirements
and capital expenditure commitment.
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The Group's borrowings and banking facilities were secured by certain
investment properties and bank deposits with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$445.1 million (2014: Leasehold property and investment
properties of HK$544.0 million).

Treasury Policy

The Group principally operates its businesses in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations
from various currencies, such as United States dollars and Chinese
Renminbi, which were the major foreign currencies transacted by the
Group during FY14 and FY15.

Since Hong Kong dollars remain pegged to the United States dollars
within a defined range, the Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign exchange risk against the United States dollars. The Group
has subsidiaries operating in Mainland China, in which most of their
transactions, including revenue, expenses and other financing activities,
are denominated in Chinese Renminbi.

The Group currently has not entered into any foreign exchange contract
as hedging measures. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
against other currencies by closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates and may use hedging derivative, such as foreign
currency forward contract, to manage its foreign currency risk as
appropriate.

Financial guarantees

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had contingent liabilities of HK$26.6
million (2014: HK$27.4 million) in respect of guaranteeing the mortgage
for certain purchasers of properties in CP&J City under mortgage
collaboration agreements with a bank in the PRC.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total workforce of 100 (2014: 720),
of whom 6 (2014: 56) were based in Hong Kong. The total staff cost,
including directors’ emoluments, share options benefit and mandatory
provident fund, was approximately HK$48.2 million (2014: HK$81.5
million). Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance
and experience. Remuneration packages, including salary and year-end
discretionary bonus, were determined by reference to market conditions
and individual performance.
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CHAIRMAN

Mr. CHENG Tai Po, aged 63, had been an Executive Director and
the Deputy Chairman of the Company since 1997. He has been re-
designated as a Non-Executive Director and the Chairman of the
Company since 16 October 2014. He is responsible for the formulation of
the Group's general business models, development strategies and major
issues. Mr. Cheng is a board member of the Zhanjiang Ocean University,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), a general committee member of
the Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’ Association and the Chairman
of Hong Kong Overseas Puning Sheshan Clansmen Association. He
has over 30 years of corporate management experience. Mr. Cheng is
currently a non-executive director of China South City Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1668)). He ceased
to be a director of China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited, a company
listed on NYSE MKT (ticker symbol: CNR) on 4 September 2014. He is the
elder brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, the controlling shareholder of
the Company, and Mr. Cheng Sai and an uncle of Ms. Cheng Ka Man,
Carman.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHENG Sai, aged 58, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since October 2014. He has over 25 years of experience in
corporate management. He is responsible for the overall management
of Man Hing Industry Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“Man Hing")
and was extensively involved in the establishment of Man Hing which
commenced in 1992. He is also responsible for the development of
business strategies and provides leadership for the properties leasing
business in Man Hing, as well as the implementation of operating
policies set by the Board. He is the brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and Mr. Cheng Tai Po and an
uncle of Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman.

Mr. LEUNG Alex, aged 36, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since October 2014. He joined the Group in February 2012 as
the Chief Financial Officer and was appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Group in March 2012. He obtained his Bachelor of Commerce
degree from the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Leung had worked in two international
accounting firms from December 2000 to February 2012. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the CPA Australia. He has more than 15 years of experience
in auditing, accounting and corporate management. Mr. Leung is
responsible for corporate finance, mergers and acquisition matters,
financial and accounting management, corporate governance, as well as
compliance affairs of the Group. He was responsible for the formulation,
planning and execution of the Group’s restructuring and the Spin-off
exercise, which was completed on 17 October 2014 upon the successful
listing of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited.

Ms. CHENG Ka Man, Carman, aged 26, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since September 2013. She is primarily
responsible for the execution of the Board's decision and the overall
management of the Group. She obtained a Master of Philosophy degree
in Real Estate Finance from University of Cambridge in 2012, a Master
of Science degree in Management from Imperial College London in 2011
and a Bachelor of Science degree in Financial and Business Economics
from University of London in 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cheng
had worked in a leading Asian investment firm. She is the daughter of
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, the controlling shareholder of the Company, and
a niece of Mr. Cheng Tai Po and Mr. Cheng Sai.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Cheong Tat, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since January 2015. He holds a
master degree in financial management from Central Queensland
University. He is an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators (U.K.) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. He is also a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Chan has over 32 years of work
experience in the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. He was an
Assistant Commissioner in charge of the field audit and investigation
unit before he retired in 2005. He is currently the sole director of C
T Tax Consultants Limited, a tax consultancy company. He is also an
independent non-executive director of the following companies which
are listed on the Stock Exchange: Guangdong Tannery Limited (stock
code: 1058), Wasion Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 3393) and
Medicskin Holdings Limited (stock code: 8307).

Mr. KIU Wai Ming, aged 66, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since September 2004. He has been in the
banking and finance field for over 30 years. He is currently an executive
director and the chief executive officer of Walker Group Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1386)). He is also
an independent non-executive director of CCB International (Holdings)
Ltd and is appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hung
Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1446)) with effect from 11 June 2014 and. Mr. Kiu
holds a bachelor’s degree in economics and marketing from Louisiana
State University, the United States of America.

Mr. LAU Chi Wah, Alex, aged 51, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Lau is
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from University of
East Anglia, United Kingdom. Mr. Lau manages initial public offerings
and fund-raising exercises and advises listed companies on mergers and
acquisitions, takeovers, buyouts and other corporate transactions. He
has over 25 years of experience in corporate finance and accounting.
He is an independent non-executive director of China Conch Venture
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
586)) and was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
One Media Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 426)) with effect from 1 September 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHENG Sai, aged 58, is the General Manager of Ming Hing. He
is also an Executive Director of the Company. Please refer to the sub-
section headed “Executive Directors” above for Mr. Cheng's biographical
details.

Mr. LEUNG Alex, aged 36, is the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of the Group. He is also an Executive Director of the
Company. Please refer to the sub-section headed “Executive Directors”
above for Mr. Leung's biographical details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Man Sang International Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recognises the importance of achieving the
highest standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs
and requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the board of directors (the ‘Board”) is fully committed
to doing so. The Board believes that high standards of corporate
governance provide a framework and solid foundation for the Group to
manage business risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of
accountability and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate governance
principles on the Group, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

According to the code provision A.4.1 as set out in the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Although two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex have not been appointed for
a specific term, they will all retire at the annual general meeting at least
once every three years and will be eligible for re-election in accordance
with the CG Code. In the opinion of the Directors, the retirement of each
Non-Executive Director at the annual general meeting at least once
every three years shall have the same effect of appointing them with a
specific term of three years.

Following the resignation of Mr. Fung Yat Sang as an Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the Chairman of the Audit Committee on 16
October 2014, the number of Independent Non-Executive Directors
of the Company fell below the minimum number required under
Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules and the Company failed to meet the
requirement set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. Further, the
Company fails to meet the requirements set out in Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the constitution of the Audit Committee.
According to Rule 3.11 and 3.23 of the Listing Rule, the Company is
required to meet the requirements set out in Rule 3.10 and 3.21 within
three months after failing to meet the requirement. Following the
appointment of Mr. Chan Cheong Tat as an Independent Non-Executive
Directors and the Chairman of the Audit Committee on 14 January 2015,
the Board has fulfilled the requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the minimum number of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the constitution of the Audit Committee of
the Company, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the “Director(s)”), the Company has complied with all code provisions as
set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2015 and,
where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices of the
CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 March 2015. To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the
Model Code and securities code of the Company, a Director is required
to notify the Chairman or the Deputy Chairman in writing and obtain a
written acknowledgement from the Chairman or the Deputy Chairman
prior to any dealings in the Securities.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk
management and performances. The management team is delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-
day management of the Group. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include (1) the
preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements for the
Board'’s approval before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company's corporate governance objectives.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and objectives
of the Group and for the exercise of independent judgement. Each
Director with various professional qualification, experience and related
financial management expertise have contributed to the effective
direction of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safeguard to the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.
Hence, the Board believes that the current Board composition satisfy the
balance of expertise, skills and experience to the corporate governance
requirements of the Group as well as the ongoing development and
management of its business activities.

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Cheng Sai, Mr. Leung Alex and Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman, one Non-
Executive Director, Mr. Cheng Tai Po (Chairman) and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming
and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex.
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In order for Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy and Mr. Fung
Yat Sang to focus on their responsibilities in view of their positions in
Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited following the Spin-off, with effect
from 16 October 2014, Mr. Cheng Chung Hing resigned as the Chairman,
a Non-Executive Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company, Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy
resigned as an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Fung Yat
Sang resigned as an Independent Non-Executive director, the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 16 to 17 of this annual report.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Company, and to review and
approve the Company's interim and annual results. During the year, four
Board meetings were held and the attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this Report.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to Directors
at least three days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to Directors for their
comment before being tabled at the next Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, all Directors appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

Save for the family relationships disclosed in the Profile of Directors and
Senior Management set out on pages 16 to 17 of this annual report, the
Directors do not have material financial, business or other relationships
with one another.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the Group are clearly defined
and segregated to ensure independence and proper checks and
balances. The Chairman focuses on the business strategy and direction
of the Company and has executive responsibilities, provides leadership
for the Board and ensures proper and effective functioning of the Board
in discharging of its responsibilities. The CEQ is accountable to the Board
for the overall implementation of the Company’s strategies and the co-
ordination of overall business operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the title of CEO up to the date of
this annual report. In the absence of the CEQ, the duties of the CEO
have been/will continue to be undertaken by other executive members
of the Board, namely Mr. Cheng Sai, Mr. Leung Alex and Ms. Cheng
Ka Man, Carman, therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, the roles
of the Chairman and the CEO have been/will continue to be properly
segregated in the absence of an officer carrying the title of CEO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

According to the code provision A.4.1 as set out in the CG Code,
non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. Although two Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex have not been
appointed for a specific term, they will all retire at the annual general
meeting at least once every three years and will be eligible for re-
election in accordance with the CG Code. In the opinion of the Directors,
the retirement of each Non-Executive Director at the annual general
meeting at least once every three years shall have the same effect of
appointing them with a specific term of three years.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
confirmation of independence from all three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau
Chi Wah, Alex in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai Ming have served the Board of
the Company for more than nine years. They have clearly demonstrated
their willingness to exercise independent judgement and to provide
objective challenges to the management. There is no evidence that
length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their independence. The
Board therefore considers that Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai
Ming remain independent, notwithstanding the length of their tenure.
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The Board has reviewed the independence of all Independent Non-
Executive Directors and concluded that all of them are independent
within the definition of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is
not aware of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to
believe that the independence of any of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors has been impaired up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives an
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company encourages the Directors to enrol in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate governance
practices so that they can continuously improve their relevant
knowledge and skills. The Company has organised a seminar in
November 2014 on updated laws and regulations. The Company has
also provided reading materials to all Directors to develop and refresh
their professional knowledge.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) on 22
August 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diversed Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to talents,
skills, experience, independence and knowledge. The Company will
also take into consideration its own business model and specific needs
from time to time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises seven Directors,
amongst them, three are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterized by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of gender, age, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the Nomination
Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy had been
met.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Audit Committee
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Pursuant to the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference, the Audit Committee is authorised to
commit Company funds in order to obtain advice from outside legal
counsel, accountants, investigatory services or other expert advice.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr.
Lau Chi Wah, Alex. Mr. Chan Cheong Tat is the chairman of the Audit
Ccommittee.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to, including to review the annual results for the year ended
31 March 2014 and the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2014 before their submission to the Board and monitored
the integrity of such financial statements. In addition, the Audit
Committee also had a private meeting with the independent auditor
without the presence of management to discuss any area of concern.
The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in the
section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference and the majority of the members of
the Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex, one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng
Tai Po, and one Executive Director, namely Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman.
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to approve the remuneration packages and
performance bonuses for the Directors and senior management of
the Company. The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this Report.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2015 are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for, amongst other things, identifying individuals suitably gualified to
become Board members, considering the reappointment of the Directors
and succession planning for Directors and making recommendations to
the Board in respect of the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau
Chi Wah, Alex, one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Tai Po,
and one Executive Director, namely Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman. Mr. Lau
Chi Wah, Alex is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
concluded that members of the Board has possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board's functions and responsibilities.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 March 2015 are set out below:

EXEREEEER

HZE2015F3A83HIFE SEELFE
Te BERZEeRFWRESSHZERE
JERRSEEHNT

Audit Remuneration
Board Committee committee

Name of Director Ex=png E=xg EREEY FHZEES
Mr. Cheng Tai Po B K S o A 4/4 - 11
Mr. Cheng Sai® Rt S A0 1/2 - -
Mr. Leung Alex? RIRFH L 2/2 - -
Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman® B/ NE® 4/4 - -
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat® PREFEHLE® 11 - -
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming BHERR S E 4/4 2/2 171
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex DERELAE 4/4 2/2 11
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing® BRFA LS A © 2/2 - 11
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy® EEZ/NHO 2/2 - -
Mr. Fung Yat Sang? KHIRAEFED 2/2 11 11

Mr. Cheng Sai was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on
16 October 2014.

Mr. Leung Alex was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on
16 October 2014.

Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company
on 14 January 2015.

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company
on 14 January 2015.

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing resigned as the Chairman, a Non-Executive Director
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company on 16 October 2014.

Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy resigned as an Executive Director of the Company
on 16 October 2014.

Mr. Fung Yat Sang resigned as an Independent Non-Executive director,
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company on 16 October
2014.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2015, and
of the results and cash flows for year then ended. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board has
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The
interim and annual results of the Company are announced in a timely
manner within the limit of two months and three months, respectively,
after the end of the relevant periods in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all

information and representation contained in the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out as follows:

BERZE

EFCeEEEEREEE2015F3A31HIE
FEZHBERE  WEEQA T RMAEER
205F3ANBZEBRANREBEZA L
FEZEENBESRE - NREHE2015F
3ANBIEFEZUBRERE  EFSE KA
ABEEER  ERERAREESKMBHRE
Bz BB ERELER  FRRERSEZ
HE M flat - WIERIZFEGEE LRI
H]E o

AREBEHFRFE - FBH R2EABAEER
B RAKRAIR - RRAB 2P HEEFEED
1w EMBRRZRE - 2 5IEA AR A RIEM
BANR=ZEAZRANERS A E -

HHEONE  HEHETRLHIINBE2015
3 A31 BILFEAR TS ERENNFEE
BRI -

R B =

RAFER BN/ BNESEKEETME
B 5T

Services rendered Fir iR ¢ AR 3% Fee paid/payable
B ENER

HK$'000

FET

Audit of financial statements BB mRE 1,350
Agreed-upon procedures on interim results RHEIXEE TR 380
Financial and tax due diligence W RMEEBES 118
Other non-audit services H M 3EBAZARTE 2,762
4,610
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls which covers financial reporting,
operations, compliance and risk management of the Company, as well
as continuous monitoring the effectiveness of such internal controls.
The Board has delegated such responsibility to the management of the
Company. The management, under the supervision of the Board, has
established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks faced by the Group.

The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls that are significant
to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit Committee also considers
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting function, as well as their
training programmes and budgets.

During the year, the Company has engaged an external adviser to review
its internal control procedures and make recommendations to the Board
any improvements that can be made to the existing internal control
procedures. The review covers the effectiveness of material controls on
financial and operational control as well as risk management functions
across the Group. The internal control and accounting system of the
Group have been in place and functioning effectively for the year under
review.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions for the year under review and
up to the date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective
and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Alex has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since March 2012. He is a full time employee of the Company and
has adequate working knowledge on the Company to discharge his
duty as the Company Secretary. Mr. Leung reports to the Chairman of
the Company and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. For the year under review, Mr. Leung has confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting ("SGM")

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), registered Shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (the “SGM
Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to convene a SGM at
the registered office of the Company (the “Registered Office”), which is
presently situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The SGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the
objects of the SGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the SGM
Requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of the SGM Requisitionists.

The Share Registrars will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars in
the SGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the
Share Registrars that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the
Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in accordance
with all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the
contrary, if the SGM Requisitionists” request is verified not in order, the
SGM Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and a SGM will not
be convened as requested.

The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM
if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the SGM Requisitionists’
request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene a SGM provided
that any SGM so convened is held within three (3) months from the date
of the original SGM Requisitionists’ request. A SGM so convened by the
SGM Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at a General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of the registered
Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such
registered Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting any statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the Registered Office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting
in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if an AGM is called
for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Shareholders’ Enquires and Proposals

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company's share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, or call its
customer service hotline at (852) 2980 1333.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the Board, the
chairman of Audit Committee and the chairman of Remuneration
Committee had attended the 2014 AGM of the Company held on 25 July
2014 to answer shareholders’ questions.

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the investor
relations department (email address: ir-hk@man-sang.com). The
management always provides prompt responses to any such enquiries.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, there are no changes in the
Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date
consolidated version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website.

By Order of the Board
CHENG Tai Po
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 May 2015
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The directors (the “Director(s)”) of Man Sang International Limited (the
“Company”) herein present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Group is principally engaged in property development and investment
which covers development, sales and leasing of properties.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set out
in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 43 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 24
July 2015 to Tuesday, 28 July 2015 (both days inclusive), for the purpose
of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Tuesday, 28 July 2015 (the “2015 AGM"), during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the 2014 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 23 July 2015.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s net reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, as
at 31 March 2015 amounted to HK$352,506,000 (2014: HK$21,836,000),
which represented the retained earnings.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 18 and 21
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are classified under
current liabilities. Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. Interest and other borrowing costs
capitalised by the Group during the year are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 153.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Sai (appointed as an executive director
on 16 October 2014)

Mr. Leung Alex (appointed as an executive director
on 16 October 2014)

Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman

Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy (resigned as an executive director
on 16 October 2014)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Tai Po (Chairman) (Re-designated as the non-executive
chairman and on 16 October 2014)

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (resigned as the non-executive
chairman and on 16 October 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 14 January 2015)

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex

Mr. Fung Yat Sang (resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 16 October 2014)

In accordance with article 87 of the Company's bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Cheng Sai, Mr. Leung Alex and
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Mr. Cheng Tai Po has entered into a service agreement with the
Company on 31 August 2012 for a fixed term of three years commencing
on 1 September 2012. Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman has entered into
a service agreement with the Company on 30 August 2013 for a fixed
term of three years commencing on 2 September 2013. Each of Mr.
Cheng Sai and Mr. Leung Alex has entered into a service agreement
with the Company on 16 October 2014 for a fixed term of three years
commencing on the same date. Such agreements are determinable by
either party serving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 16 to 17.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and in Note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company has been
entered into or existed during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following sharing of office agreement (the “Sharing of Office
Agreement”) were entered into by Man Sang Jewellery Company Limited
("Man Sang Jewellery”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
China South City Holdings Limited (“China South City”), a company being
deemed as a connected person of the Company by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) at its discretion under
Rule 14A.06 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”). As such, the entering into the Sharing of Office Agreements
between Man Sang Jewellery and China South City and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

HEREXRS

ARF2EMBRARREKRERRAR(RE
WE ) BEmBERARAR ([EEW]) L
HABAERE ((KARAERHE]) > MEE
BMAERZMBRAR (B RIEFESF LD
AT ETRAI)ZE 14A.06 RTTREE BB -
RERBBIERNRB ZBEAL - Fit - BRI
FHRAEUAE  REKRBEERMAI K
AW AE N ER TRETR BB A R

Consideration for
the year ended
Connected person  Date of agreement Terms Shared Premises 31 March 2015
BZ2015%
3A318
BEAL A=k B LM LFEEZRE
HKS
BT
China South City 13 March 2014 17 March 2014 to Suite 2205, 22/F Sun Life Tower, The Gateway, 15 Canton $1,549,000
201443130 17 October 2014 Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong with a total floor (Note 1)
(both days inclusive) area of approximately 3,873 square feet. GE
B £2014%63R178Z EANERDUERESHAERAEDKBEBABELE
2014F108178 205%  BEREREL3LIBTAR
(BEEEMB)
Note: BitsE

1. The annual consideration is based on monthly rental fees, management
fees, air- conditioning fees, utilities fees and government rates.

Rental fees, management fees, air-conditioning fees and utilities fees
payable by China South City to Man Sang Jewellery under the Sharing of
Office Agreement were based on terms mutually agreed between both
parties.

An announcement was published on 13 March 2014 (the “Announcement”)
regarding the continuing connected transactions in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

With the amendments to the Listing Rules on connected transactions
which became effective from 1 July 2014, the continuing connected
transactions under the Sharing of Office Agreement have become
exempted continuing connected transactions pursuant to the new Rule
14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules. The Company will apply the exemption
under Rule 14A.76(1)(C) to the continuing connected transactions under
the Sharing of Office Agreement, and such transactions will no longer
be reported and subject to annual review in the annual reports of the
Company going forward.
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The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 March 2015, the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company; (ii) on normal commercial
terms; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported
the factual findings on these procedures to the Board and confirmed
that for the year ended 31 March 2015, the continuing connected
transactions (i) are properly approved by the board of Directors of the
Company; (i) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of
the agreements governing the transactions; and (iii) have not exceeded
the cap amounts for the year ended 31 March 2015 as set out in the
Announcement. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors had any interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme which was adopted
on 2 August 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Details of the movement of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year are set out below:

FRNRBERETERE 2 BRE 285
YT

Changes during the year
FREH
Exercise Balanceat Exercised Lapsed Balance at
Price 1 April during during 31 March
Grantees Date of grant Exercisable period HK$ 2014  theyear  the year 2015 Notes
R2014F R2015%
~ ﬁﬁ{g 4R1H ~ 3A31H
ABRA REBH 76 BT 2&E% FRTE FRAXK ok 2 Wt
Director
=
Mr. Leung Alex 2 March 2012 2 March 2012 to 0.610 3,000,000  (2,000,000) - 1,000,000 3
1 March 2017
P 20123 A 2H 01263A28%
2017F3A1H
Notes: PR -
1. These share options represent personal interest held as beneficial owner. 1. ZEERERRUERBEEAFOHBEZME
UN; ol

2. The Company recorded the fair value of these share options as staff
cost in the consolidated income statement. The Company will record the
nominal value of the shares which is HK$0.10 per share issued pursuant to
the exercise price of the share options as additional share capital and the
Company will record the excess of the exercise price of the share options
over nominal value of the shares in its share premium account. Any share
options which have lapsed or been cancelled will be deducted from the
balance of the share options.

3. 1,000,000 share options will be vested on the first anniversary of the date
of grant, another 1,000,000 share options will be vested on the second
anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining 1,000,000 share options
will be vested on the third anniversary of the date of grant.

CONSULTANT OPTION

On 23 August 2011, the Company entered into a consultancy services
agreement (the “Consultancy Services Agreement”) with Magical Asia
Capital Limited (the “Consultant”), an independent third party, where the
Consultant agreed to provide the following services to the Company: (i)
advise and assist the Group in seeking and identifying an appropriate
target company for the strategic co-operation in the development of
micro credit businesses; (i) assist the Group in seeking and identifying
a senior executive with appropriate experience and reputation in the
financial sector; and (iii) perform such other duties as may be mutually
agreed (if any).

In consideration of the provision of the services by the Consultant,
the Company agreed to grant option to the Consultant to subscribe
for 49,415,608 shares of the Company (the “Consultant Option”,
representing 4% of the issued share capital of the Company on the date
of grant of the Consultant Option) as service fee paid to the Consultant.
The exercise price of the Consultant Option was fixed at HK$0.515 per
share. The Consultant Option is exercisable in whole or in part at any
time within five years from 20 September 2011.
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During the year, all 49,415,608 shares of the Consultant Option were
exercised and no consultant option remained outstanding as of 31
March 2015.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors have taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were set out below:

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of the
Company

RAREE - 249,415,608 17 FERE BB AR HE O &
1T - N2015FE3 A3 BN mAKITERERIEE
&4 o

ESHRzESER

R2015F3A31H  EER AR A K EA(ER
REEE (REH RS GO ([FH RE K
Bl1) EXV I T HRRE) 2K - MERER G X
BHFHEE QRIBEES B EGRHIEXVEE
TRESHBZHATEBRBANAR B R (E
FERBEFRBERNBERTE TESHRIE
RBEZERRAE) O BEZESFRARK
B2 352 R B A Z G BIFT e R &2 ¢ 3k(C)
RIE ETRAIMIEERT 2 ET AR ERHEITES
R GWIZESTR([EESFR D) BHE R 6 K&
BRI R RAREINNT

(@ REARFEBERZHER

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each held

FiEEERMAE0I0ETZEEBREE
Percentage of
the issued
Direct Deemed Total share capital
Name of director Capacity interest interest interest of the Company
A AT
ERITRA
EEpE 54 HiERER BEREER R BAk
Mr. Leung Alex Beneficial owner 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.15%
REGEE EREBA
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing® Beneficial owner and interest 341,773,453 468,781,655? 810,555,108 60.87%
of a controlled corporation
/NS EnlE AR EERR
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy® Beneficial owner 18,000,000 - 18,000,000 1.35%
BAEZ/NMAD EnEAA
Note: st -

m Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy resigned as the
Directors of the Company on 16 October 2014.

@ These 468,781,655 shares of the Company were directly owned by
Rich Men Limited, where Mr. Cheng Chung Hing owns 100% of the
issued share capital of Rich Men Limited.
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(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the
Company

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none of the Directors
had, as at 31 March 2015, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to provisions of Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which the Directors have taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, substantial shareholders’ interests and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
other than the Directors, as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

(b) ALFHEERGDZHFE
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Number of shares held

Fris &R
Percentage of
the ordinary
Direct Deemed shares of
Name of shareholder Capacity interest interest the Company
LR NN
BRERER 54 HiEfERz GERGEz STERAIE
Rich Men Limited (Note) (B 5F) Beneficial Owner 468,781,655 - 35.20%
EnHEBA

The interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the Company has not
been notified of any person (other than the Directors of the Company) or
entity had an interest or a short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Note: Rich Men Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, a former
director of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
O

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiries with all the Directors, they have confirmed
compliance with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed the independence
of all the Independent Non-executive Directors and is satisfied of their
independence.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai Ming had served the Board of
the Company for more than nine years. They have clearly demonstrated
their willingness to exercise independent judgement and to provide
objective challenges to the management. There is no evidence that
length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their independence. The
Board therefore considers that Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai
Ming remain independent, notwithstanding the length of their tenure.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, which comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the auditor, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

38 Man Sang International Limited / Annual Report 2015

AR TAREETRERS 2B
35 B

ARBCHERETESR ZHRMA LT AR B
BERETR  RAZBERELRE
EME - RERRNEE2015F3A318 1k
FEA—BEETRETRIFFEHZRERE

BYKHTESZBISH

ARREEESBLIFRTESRIE EHRA
EI3BGEREBLHNE L 2 FEERL - &
FECHEEREIIFNTEST 2B LEN
WS EFTIEBL

BEELEERBHRAXERBARTNEZER
NF o REBERIRIREM R EETT I8 7 # BT Ay
B UABEEWREEREN - IEEME
BRERNAREHREB LB INEE
Bt - EFER R TwEHRE - 2I5FEL
HERBHEREENRBIAL -

BEREES

MARR =B FNTEEHARZIERERER
g HEEEEHFAZHECENARERAZ
SERAKRER - WA AREZE RS BRE
E2H BREEHASEHZE2015F3A31H
I EEZRECEAMBEERE -



Report of the Directors
EHFHE

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS' INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Directors during the year ended 31 March 2015 and
up to the date of this report are set out below:

Name of Director Details of Changes

Mr. Cheng Tai Po Ceased to be a director of China Metro-
Rural Holdings Limited on 5 September
2014 and re-designated as the chairman
and a non-executive director of the
Company on 16 October 2014

Mr. Cheng Sai Appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 16 October 2014

Mr. Leung Alex Appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 16 October 2014

Mr. Cheng Ka Man, Carman  Appointed as the member of the
Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company
on 14 January 2015

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat Appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 14
January 2015

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming Appointed as an independent non-

executive director of Hung Fook Tong
Group Holdings Limited on 11 June 2014

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex Appointed as an independent non-
executive director of One Media Group
Limited on 1 September 2014

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing Resigned as the chairman, a non-
executive director and a member of
the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company
on 16 October 2014

Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy Resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 16 October 2014

Mr. Fung Yat Sang Resigned as an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of
the audit committee and a member of
the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company
on 16 October 2014

Save for information disclosed, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
O

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float during the year and up to the date of this Directors’
Report under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Tai Po
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 May 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
383 7 % B e o

i
pwec

To The Shareholders of Man Sang International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Man Sang
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 43 to 152, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.32), and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

i 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888
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Independent Auditor’s Report
385 7 A% BRI R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2015, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 May 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement

f 0 WL i R

Year ended 31 March

BE3A3MALFE

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FET FAT
(Restated)
€27
Continuing operation BECEEK
Revenue A 7 73,368 82,907
Cost of sales SHE R 1 (15,699) (32,8998)
Gross profit el 57,669 50,009
Other income HAbugzs 9 871 1,683
Other gains — net HAA—F%8 10 13,925 964
Selling expenses HERY 11 (5,807) (3,624)
Administrative expenses THRAX 1 (36,751) (26,665)
Increase in fair values of investment BREMENEREEEDE
properties and investment properties NAELE
under construction 28,697 80,950
Operating profit BT 58,604 103,317
Finance income B s 37 4,166 4,493
Finance costs IEIP®N 37 (5,109) (4,763)
Finance costs — net B — F 5 (943) (270)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate FE(E—FEB & DR ()5 F (7) 29
Profit before income tax BRET BB AR R 57,654 103,076
Income tax expense TSR X 14 (43,202) (48,976)
Profit for the year from FEERABFERSEER
continuing operation 2R 14,452 54,100
Discontinued operation CRIEQEEL
Profit for the year from REERBBRIEEER
discontinued operation 2 H 44 1,884 31,496
Profit for the year KEERR 16,336 85,596

RABBARAT /% LFFR
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Consolidated Income Statement

wi e WA

Year ended 31 March
BZE3AMALEE

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B s THAT FTAT
(Restated)
(K8 E75)
Profit attributable to equity holders KA RRRELGF
of the Company:
— from continuing operation — REFECEER 9,095 36,967
— from discontinued operation — RECRIEREER 1,884 31,496
10,979 68,463
Profit attributable to non-controlling FERESEER
interests:
— from continuing operation — REBERSES 5,357 17,133
— from discontinued operation — RECRIEREER - -
e 857 17,133
Profit for the year REEER 16,336 85,596
Earnings per share attributable to ERRRRELESRER
equity holders of the Company 16
Basic YN
— from continuing operation — REFELEER 0.70 HK centsi#fl  2.89 HK cents &1Ll
— from discontinued operation — RECRIEREER 0.14 HK centsi&fl  2.46 HK cents &1l
0.84 HK cents&{li 535 HK cents /&1l
Diluted e 16
— from continuing operation — REFBLEER 0.70 HK centsi&{l  2.85 HK cents &1Ll
— from discontinued operation — RADKRIHELETK 0.14 HK centsi#&4l  2.44 HK cents &1l
0.84 HK cents&{li  5.29 HK cents &1Ll

Details of dividend to the equity holders of the Company are set out in

note 17.

The notes on pages 53 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

44 Man Sang International Limited / Annual Report 2015

IR FARRBIBRZ BB IR RE7

FEIE 12 A ZHERNGEMBHRER 2 ERE

2B o



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RAY.N
B0 2 T AR R
Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31AILEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&&E75)
Profit for the year REF R 16,336 85,596
Other comprehensive income: HEi2mikss
ltem that may be reclassified to profit or loss — AJpEE#H HIEE1E 2 1HH
Exchange difference on translation MBI INETS 2 [E N ERE
of foreign operations - 17,660
Item that will not be subsequently HEe TregH B BncHE
reclassified to profit or [0ss
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and HELHREFEAAELE -
buildings, net of deferred income tax BRIEIEFTISBF R 16,903 564
Other comprehensive income for the year REFHMEE Y 16,903 18,224
Total comprehensive income for the vear, NEEE2EWEBEE - BREVFE
net of tax 33,239 103,820
Attributable to: &R,
Equity holders of the Company VNN )32 27,882 80,737
Non-controlling interests FEERR 5,357 23,083
33,239 103,820
Total comprehensive income attributable to REFARQFREEMEERE
equity holders of the Company for the year WREEEER
arising from:
Continuing operation BEEEED 24,881 44,542
Discontinued operation RIS 3,001 36,195
27,882 80,737

The notes on pages 53 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated

FEIE 12 A ZMERARA M BRER 2K

financial statements. o o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

e EEARE

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B TERx FETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties WEME 18 939,994 996,515
Investment properties EEEEME 19
under construction 68,670 67,536
Property, plant and equipment ME - B R 21 523 123,635
Prepaid lease payments %Efﬁﬁi%ﬁk 22 - 154
Prepayments SEENE8 57 348
Investment in an associate E’é—F‘%Hﬁ%%’A AZIE 23 169 176
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSHEE 25 - 3,067
1,009,413 1,191,431
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 26 - 78,282
Properties under development BREAYE 20 155,986 142,752
Completed properties held for sale BEIEREZ R T 27 278,572 186,291
Trade and other receivables f WE k& H U BR 30 28 43,309 103,576
Financial assets at fair value through  @i@i8z5IE AR EFE 2 29
profit or loss BIi5 & E 9,660 21,775
Current income tax recoverable BN HApE I P 1S At - 7
Restricted cash SRR S 30 100,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFERRE 30 264,265 392,355
851,792 925,038
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables ERERREMERIER 31 455,564 408,494
Current income tax liabilities BVERFR BRI A& 116,392 116,704
Borrowings BE 32 137,800 125,400
Amount due to an associate FES — R E & A B IE 23 4,027 2,961
713,783 653,559
Net currentassets ~  #g&<E®& 138,009 271,479
Total assets less HEERRBARE
current liabilities 1,147,422 1,462,910
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

A EERARE

As at 31 March

MA3HB31H
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHRARE 25 230,112 213,602
Borrowings BE 32 37,800 175,600
267,912 389,202
Net assets EERE 879,510 1,073,708
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity KA TRREERER
holders of the Company
Share capital & A 33 133,161 128,019
Reserves & 594,920 799,617
728,081 927,636
Non-controlling interests RS 151,429 146,072
Total equity HERER 879,510 1,073,708

The notes on pages 53 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 152 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 May

2015 and were signed on its behalf by:

FEEIE 12 A ZMER/NGREMBHRER 2 BRE

55 -

FA3E 2B AR A MBHRREN2015F
SA2NRESESHAEMFETE - XA T
BEERARRE

Cheng Tai Po

B R
Chairman & Non-Executive Director

EERIFHTEF

Leung Alex
Executive Director
HiTEE
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Balance Sheet
e AfE

As at 31 March

MW3A31H
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
o FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RBRRZI&E 24 211,018 211,245
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NG €] 24 281,513 281,513
492,531 492,758
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b e B BR 3R 572 267
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE BT B A | FIE 24 23,293 10,036
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFERRE 30 4,116 1,704
27,981 12,007
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b fETER IR 1,354 1,133
Netcurrentassets ~  hA®m&AE¥&E 2000202000000 26627 10,874
Total assets less current liabilities ~ ®#AZRZ®RE 0000 519,158 503,632
Net assets EEFE 519,158 503,632
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity holders 7 B EGER
of the Company
Share capital f& A 33 133,161 128,019
Reserves HE 35 385,997 375,613
Total equity R 519,158 503,632

The notes on pages 53 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated %53 & 152 B 2 Mt ARG A B gk - =g
financial statements. 7o o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 152 were F43F12E G A B MR DR 201545
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 May 5 R 21 BEZEE & & RISETE - W hE T
2015 and were signed on its behalf by: BERREE

Cheng Tai Po Leung Alex

BRR I R

Chairman & Non-Executive Director Executive Director
FEFIMTEFE HITEFE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mallenmk

Year ended 31 March
BEZE3HA3MHLEEE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEKELCEHESRE
Profit before income tax KR P15 %54 A1 4 ) 62,517 137,376
Adjustments for: FTINSBEED A
Interest income FBWA (4,452) (5,077)
Interest expenses F B 5,655 4,932
Depreciation of property, Y - BB REREITE
plant and equipment 4,054 6,956
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &/ 0 & 2B 84 - 8
Share of loss/(profit) of an associate JEG— & N EEE, CRF) 7 (29)
Share-based payment ARG B E2E 2 5% 66 71
Increase in fair values of investment WEMERTREZEME
properties and investment properties NREEE
under construction (28,697) (80,950)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZ (WA) KB (1,679) 1
Gain on disposals of investment HEREMERTERE
properties and investment properties mEZ WA
under development (2,362) -
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, THEME BMEREREZ
plant and equipment &8, (WA) 174 (144)
Fair value change in financial assets BBBRRAAEYERY
at fair value through profit or loss M EEAABEES (6,607) 2,991
Dividend income % B 2 (871) (1,231)
Operating cash flows before EEESRFAIZ
working capital changes REFSRE 27,805 65,004
Change in working capital: BIEEOEE)
Inventories FE (8,078) (1,511)
Completed properties held for sale BEHEZ B TS 11,515 27,357
Properties under development BRI (111,179) (117,349)
Trade and other receivables JFE L 5 R e L At P U AR R (53,548) 35,058
Prepayments SEENE S 291 621
Trade and other payables e E R E A BT AR SR 90,258 25,819
Amount due to an associate JE A — BT & A R 3R IE 1,066 316
Cash (used in)/generated REEE(FER) EBEEZERE
from operations (41,870) 35,315
Interest paid BARFE (11,506) (14,661)
Income taxes paid BERATEH (12,772) (9,463)
Net cash (used in)/generated Rexk(FH) EE2RSFHE
from operating activities (66,148) 11,191
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HAaBleREg

Year ended 31 March
BE3HA3MHLEEE

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FaxT FHET
Cash flows from investing activities RETZBELZHERE
Purchase of property, plant BEYE  BELRE
and equipment (3,055) (3,069)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BEMLE
plant and equipment P8 3R 2 416
Proceeds from disposals of investment HERBEYEMRSRIE
properties 3,278 -
Proceeds from financial assets at FrS I8k B BB RIR
fair value through profit or loss, net NABEYRHEEEFTE 18,722 3,630
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AR 44 123,850 1
Dividend received BB 871 1,231
Interest received B2 UF B 4,452 5,077
Net cash outflow upon the Spin-off SRR s R T RpE L 44 (57,731) =
Increase in restricted cash SRR 3R & 4 0 (100,000) =
Net cash (used in)/generated RETE (ER) EE2
from investing activities BEFE (9,611) 7,286
Cash flows from financing activities ®EEFBELERSRE
Issue of new shares BITHIR 26,669 -
Proceeds from borrowings BEEFSRIEAE - 48,000
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (79,000) (77,975)
Acquisition of additional interest in WKE—FHNEB ARz
a subsidiary I MER - (17,300)
Dividend paid BRI E - (25,598)
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEFERA2REFE (52,331) (72,873)
Net decrease in cash and REeERERARERMD 2 FHE
cash equivalents (128,090) (54,396)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#7RE&EERES
of the year 392,355 440,770
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [EXR &) 2 g4 - 5,981
cash and cash equivalents at end FR2BEESRERERS
of the year 30 264,265 392,355

The notes on pages 53 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated 553 & 152 B 7 MisT ARG & MGk 2 &
financial statements. #o o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAFRREN
Share Property Retained Non-
Share Share option  revaluation  Translation eanings controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve (note @) Total interests equity
ERE  mEEf REEF AR
E  BRiEE E1 e EXRE (Fzka) @t i s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TER TAR TAT TAT TAL FER TER
Balance at 1 April 2013 R2013E4 18268 128,019 301,879 1,727 114,39 72,735 194,338 863,094 139,748 1,002,342
Profit for the year TEE R o o = = = 68,463 68,463 17133 85,59
Other comprehensive income: Hth 2
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations R EEN LWz EH 28 - - - - 11,710 - 11,710 5,950 17,660
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and buildings, ~ BE LM REFAAELE
net of deferred income tax RELHEHFE - - - 564 - - 564 - 564
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERANGER - - - 564 11,710 68,463 80,737 23,083 103,820
Final dividend (note 17) RIS (H317) - - - = = (25,604) (25,604) - (25,604)
Share option benefits BIRERT - - 171 - - - 171 - 17
Release of property revaluation reserve upon HELHRETHEREE
depreciation of leasehold land and buildings NEEHRE - - - (1,158) - 1.158 - - -
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary -l B AR EoMER
(note 41) (WizEan) = = - - - 9,238 9,238 (16,759) 7521
Transferred to retained earnings upon disposals of HERELE 2B T ERERN
completed properties held for sales, net of deferred REGF - REEHERFE
income tax - - - (1,262) - 1262 - - -
Total transactions with owners BREAARTIRHER = - 171 (2420 - (13946) (16,195) (16,759) (32.954)
Balances at 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31 AzEH 128,019 301,879 11,898 112,540 84,445 248855 927,636 146,072 1,073,708
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
oNeg Erh L kS

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KATRREE
Share  Property Retained Non-
Share Share option revaluation Translation  earnings controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  (notea) Total interests equity
BRE  WMEER REER FER
BE  RIEE e R EiRk (Wita) E-hy i aRs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAr TEx TEx THT THT ThRT ThRL ThRL ThR
Balance at 1 April 2014 R2014E4 A 18 268 128,019 341,879 11,898 112,540 84,445 248,855 927,636 146,072 1,073,708
Profit for the year NEERF - - - - - 10,979 10,979 5,357 16,336
Other comprehensive income: Eh2EMGE -
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and buildings, ~ &+ RET AL ESE -
net of deferred income tax RELMEREE - - - 16,903 - - 16,903 - 16,903
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZENEER - - - 16,903 - 10,979 27,882 5,357 33,239
Share premium reduction (note (b)) BB E (M3 () - (341,879) - - - 3879 - - -
Issue of new shares upon exercise of share options AERRERTIIR 5,142 21,521 - - - - 26,669 - 26,669
Transfer to share premium upon exercise of ffEERERSRARR G
share options - M8 (11,748) - - - - - -
Share option benefits FEIRERR - - 66 - - - 66 - 66
Release of property revaluation reserve upon HELHRETHEREER
depreciation of leasehold land and buildings MEEREE - - - (1,162) - 1,162 - - -
Transferred to retained earnings upon disposals of HERELE 2 RTMEREM
completed properties held for sales, net of deferred DR REEHERTE
income tax - - - (33,698) - 33,698 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HERBAR (M) - - - (52,794) 171 (201,549)  (254,172) - (254172)
Total transactions with owners BEFNETIRHEE 5,142 (308,604) (11,682) (87,654) 7 175,190 (227,437) - (227,437)
Balances at 31 March 2015 R2015F3A31A 268 133,161 33,275 216 41,789 84,616 435024 728,081 151429 879,510
Note: Bsr
(@  The Group's retained earnings included an amount of HK$29,772,000 2014:  (a) ZANEBEZRZHEMN T EFEDEARKLMBE ([

HK$28,326,000) reserved by the subsidiaries in the People’'s Republic of
China ("PRC") in accordance with the relevant PRC regulations. The PRC
laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC to provide
for certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in
their respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions to
equity holder. All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC
company is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory
surplus reserves, upon distribution of its post-tax profits of the current
year. A company may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate
sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered
capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make up
losses of the company, to expand the company’s production operations, or
to increase the capital of the company. In addition, a company may make
further contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using its post-tax
profits in accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on the special general meeting
held on 25 July 2014, the share premium account of the Company had
been reduced by the amount of HK$341,879,000, with the credit arising
therefrom transferred to the retained profits of the Company.

The notes on pages 53 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&3 B 5 e 2 Bi B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Man Sang International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are currently engaged in the
development, sales and leasing of properties.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group underwent
a series of group restructuring to rationalise the Group’s
shareholding structure for the purpose of a spin-off and separate
listing of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited ("MS Jewellery”)
and its subsidiaries(together, the “MSJ Group”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company engaging in the purchasing, processing,
designing, production and wholesale distribution of pearls and
jewellery product (the “Pearls and Jewellery Business”).

On 25 June 2014, MS Jewellery submitted a listing application to
the Stock Exchange for a separate listing on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange by way of introduction, through a distribution
in specie by the Company of the entire issued share capital of
MS Jewellery (the “Spin-off”). The Spin-off was completed on 17
October 2014 and the MSJ Group were no longer subsidiaries of
the Group.

Following the completion of the Spin-off, the Group no longer
engages in the Pearls and Jewellery Business. Going forward, the
Group will continue to focus on the development, sales and leasing
of properties in Mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
unless otherwise stated.

—BRRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 Y 255 2 PR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

2.

54

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, investment properties,
investment properties under construction and leasehold land
and buildings, which are carried at fair values.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial
year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Pearls and
Jewellery Business had been distributed to the Company’s
shareholders upon the successful spin-off and separate
listing of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited, a former
wholly-owned subsidiary engaging in the Pearls and
Jewellery Business, by way of distribution in specie. As a
result, the Pearls and Jewellery Business was presented
as a discontinued operation in the consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2014 have been restated to
present such business as discontinued operation. Such re-
presentation has no impact on the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 March 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries

)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 1 A 5 R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

56

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or l0ss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in an associate includes

goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

2. FESTBERBE(F)

(c)
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The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of (loss)/profit
of an associate” in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

58

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held by the
Group or under finance lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, which include property interest held
under operating lease carried at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the balance
sheet date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The fair values of investment properties are based on
valuation by independent valuers who hold recognised
professional qualification and have recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued. Fair value
is determined based on market value, being the estimated
amount for which a property could be exchanged on the
date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein
the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its deemed cost
for accounting purposes. The deemed cost of property, plant
and equipment is used as the basis for the carrying amount
and depreciation of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Investment properties (Continued)

Properties that are being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are classified as investment
properties under construction. Investment properties under
construction are initially stated at cost, including borrowing
costs capitalised, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, less any
impairment losses. At the balance sheet date when fair
value can be determined reliably, it is stated at fair value
subsequent to initial recognition. Any difference between
the fair value of the property at the date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Where fair value is not reliably determinable,
such investment property under construction is measured at
cost until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable
or construction is completed (whichever is earlier).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the year in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and buildings transferred from investment
properties are stated at deemed cost equal to its fair value
at the date of change in use and is continued to account
for as if it was an asset held under finance lease. The entire
lease payment of leasehold land and buildings are included
in the cost of land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment and stated at deemed cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

60

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(f)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives from the date on
which they are available for use and after taking into account
of their estimated residual values, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 50 years
25%—33%

20%—25%

Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 25%

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Residual
values and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet
date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other gains — net” in the consolidated income
statement.

Properties under development

Properties that are being constructed or developed for
future use as held-for-sales are classified as properties
under development and stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sale proceeds of properties sold in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Development cost of property comprises construction
costs, amortisation of land use rights and borrowing costs
capitalised, and professional fees incurred during the
development period. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets when the construction of the relevant properties
commences unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(8)

(h)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of the
year are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or
by management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments include up-front payments to
acquire leasehold land and payments for lease of properties,
where the leases are held under operating lease. Prepaid
lease payments are stated at cost and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the balance sheet
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 1 A 5 R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

62

()

Financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets, if expected to be settled within
12 months, otherwise they are classified as non-
current assets.

. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
trade and other receivables, restricted cash and
cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet.

Man Sang International Limited / Annual Report 2015

2. TESTHBREEHE)

()

MBEE

)

28

AEBESGEMBEED BN
T EBBESEARENE
ZHBEENNER R R
R R T RBEABY
BEEZBENME - B3R
RN B ERFREMGEE
5l -

o BERmIEANEIE
ZHBEE

mBBSE A ER
ZHBEEERFHELE
MBEE - TER/NAE
HIM & e i 2 B 7%
BEDHEBUBEE -
AR 2 B EHEAS
RI21E A AR - BlD
BRRBEE TR

AIDBRIERBEE °

o EHREMEN

BN U ER R BIELT
EMGEE  EATHE
ok R HESE R 2 K
W B AR R BB T 5 3R
B Bt ARDEE -
BEAEAR12(EHA
ZIREEY B AFERE
BE—BRELDIS - K
SEEFR R EUERRE
REERBRAZEER
XEHRS AR S R
SRABRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated income
statement within — “Other gains — net”, in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group'’s right to receive payments is
established.

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

2. FESTBERBE(F)

()

MBEEE (&)

(i)

(i)

BRRE

MBEEZRREBENESR
BE(BIAEEAHEBEEE
Z )R - BBREREA
REJRZMBEEN IR
RNAEER MRXHUAE
RiFEBERH - BRE
WERR &R E Z A EmsK
BEMASBERERRE
REBo BB & O ®Es - K&
RIEERUBEE - BIBR
SR ARBEIRIHVBEE
HERAREIR - EF R
FEMR KA BB A SRR #
HHRCAFIBR o

EBRmR A ENR Y
BEE| BB TRARLE
BBMELZEE Bt A
ELEHEZRERERT [H
A — FE] A - ERE
AEBERREDRER B
BIESRAREINR WS
BEZBREWASIEREM
Witz — 8o ERE MR
HERR

BBERARTIRCEE

AEEREHEEAFEHRS
BEEBRERBR —BAMBE
EX—HMBEEESLER
B —AYHEES—HEY
BEEEERN T ERZ
BERBAEZ-BUZESF
H(TEREMH]) mELRE
ZEREREER AuEBBREEN
(HREEREMH) HUBE
Ef—AMBEE Z AR
KREREZFEREIAE
bR TERERESL
RERTE -

RABBARAT /% LFFR 63



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 Y 255 2 PR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

0

(m)

(n)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, cost of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 1 A 5 R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

66

(0)

(p)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 Y 255 2 PR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

68

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
risks and rewards related to the properties are transferred
to purchasers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed, title to the properties has
been delivered to the purchasers and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Revenue is recognised
only to the extent collectability of such receivable is
reasonably assured.

Revenue from sales of properties with operating
leaseback

To promote sales of certain properties, the Group conducted
a promotional sale of these properties since 2009 wherein it
sold such properties at special rates to selected purchasers.
Sales consideration for these properties included an explicitly
agreed transaction price to be settled in cash plus a lease
back of these properties to the Group free of charge for the
period of 5 years. As lease back of the properties free of
charge was arranged as part of the sale of these properties,
the Group determined the fair value of lease payments it
would ordinarily make to lease such properties from other
independent owners based on factors such as expected
occupancy rates, rental yields etc. and included it as part of
the sales consideration received with a corresponding debit
to other prepaid lease payments. The other prepaid lease
payments will be amortised and recognised as operating
leases expense on a straight line basis over the period of the
lease.

Revenue from sales of goods

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.
Revenue from leasing of investment properties

Rental income under operating leases is recognised in the

period in which the properties are let out and on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

Others

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payments have been established.

Retirement benefits scheme

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the
PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds managed by the
PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S50 B R B Rk
For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r) Retirement benefits scheme (Continued)

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”), which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on
minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible
employees’ relevant aggregate income subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month. The assets of this pension scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

(s) Share-based payments

(i)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted. In
determining the fair value of the options granted:

. market performance conditions are taken into
considerations;

. the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
as employee of the entity over a specified time
period) is excluded; and

. the impact of any non-vesting conditions is
included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Share-based payments (Continued)

)

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the balance sheet date, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium, net of any
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited or are not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.

2. FESTBERBE(F)

(s)

AR REEE 2 K ()

)

(i)

EZGEUROREEZM
RXR 5 (&)

FMERBRTEREEH
RBERFEHEB < B RE
BB - RSB HREE
@ BE P A 45 € 5 B 1R 1
VEmEZHE  £EER
% ANEBREBEFNESEB
fERpE e E R AT TR RSB
ZEREHE - EERE W
RPERETHRMGT 2
E(WH) BESFEREESR

%go

R &R R RRETTE
BT ZROMBRMER
ERBARBTZIRIRA
% - BEF AR (HE) M
(g

RITEB AR - Z BTN E
P v (o T AR 2 SR S
ERMEE - RERERK
S JE R B R T R R
2 B R B A e 1R T R 2 X
BREBREREEN -

SERARAEUAROAEE
ZHRRS

ARBARNEEETHEA
AEERLEERTAZE
BRERSEARE - T
NEERBZANE 2%
BRHBHZARNERE &
BRI ER S EETH B
DR RIE AL - AEE
AFARRARERRP 2 o

RABBARAT /% LFFR 71



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

72

(s)

(t)

(u)

Share-based payments (Continued)
(iii) Share options granted to a consultant

Share options issued in exchange for services are
measured at fair value of the services received. The
fair value of the options granted is determined on the
same basis as those for employees and directors of
the Group. The fair value of the services received is
recognised as an expense, unless the services qualify
for recognition as assets.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the assets for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Foreign currency translation

)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“"HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings, restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other gains —
net'.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

74

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded
in other comprehensive income are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate.

(w) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor), including
upfront payment made for land use right, are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over

the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in finance
lease obligations. The interest element of the finance cost
is charged to the consolidated income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful

life of the asset and the lease term.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

76

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks on
behalf of subsidiaries and other independent third parties to
secure loans and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair values on the
date the guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and the value
of the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the
guarantee obligation. No receivable for the future premiums
is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the guarantee. These estimates
are determined based on experience of similar transactions
and history of past losses, supplemented by management’s
judgement. The fee income earned is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported in
the consolidated income statement within administrative
EXPENSES.

Where guarantees in relation to loans of subsidiaries are
provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted
for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201593 A31 Bt FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

BRAFTE] RAEIER] 2 BB U
4 3t g

| ==

(@) New standards, revisions and amendments (@ MR2014F4B1BBB2E
to existing standards effective for annual ENEENELAEEEER
periods beginning 1 April 2014, relevant to B EBERA 2T %E
the Group’s operations and adopted by the Al - R BERFEBSHR
Group: 1837 :
Amendment to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities

HKAS 27 (2011)

BBV HEHREERFE 105 - REESE

%}%ﬁﬂ%iﬁi“ﬂu%uﬁ
EEGHERIZE 27 5% (2011 ) ({ERT )

Amendment to HKAS 32
BB GEERE 29 (BFTA)
Amendment to HKAS 36
BEGTERE 365 (BRI A)
Amendment to HKAS 39

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

BRI BEERMB AR

Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets
BEIFMBEEZ KBRS

Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting

BB EAE IR (EFTA) TETABBRETEFAZTER
HK(IRIC)-Int 21 Levies
BE(ERMERERELZEE) RES21HR R

The adoption of the above new standards, revisions and
amendments to existing standards did not have any
material impact on the preparation of the Group's financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b) New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations which have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 April 2014 and
have not been early adopted:

Effective for
annual periods
beginning
on or after
Amendmentto  Defined benefit plans 1July 2014
HKAS 19
Amendmentto  Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle 1July 2014
HKFRSs
Amendmentto  Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle 1July 2014
HKFRSs
Amendmentto  Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle 1 January 2016
HKFRSs
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017
Amendmentto  Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and 1 January 2016
HKFRS 10and  its associate or joint venture
HKAS 28
Amendmentto  Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception 1 January 2016
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28
Amendmentto  Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations 1 January 2016
HKFRS 11
Amendmentto  Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
HKAS 1
Amendmentto  Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation 1 January 2016
HKAS 16and  and amortisation
HKAS 38
Amendmentto  Agriculture: Bearer plants 1 January 2016
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendmentto  Equity method in Separate financial statements 1 January 2016
HKAS 27

The Group is assessing the impact of these standards,
amendments and interpretations and does not anticipate
that the adoption will result in any material impact on the
Group's results of operation and financial position.

The Group intends to adopt the above standards,
amendments and interpretations when they become
effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the Directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key areas of judgement that may have a significant impact in
determining the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
market conditions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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4.

80

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value of leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties and investment
properties under construction

Leasehold land and buildings, investment properties and
investment properties under construction are stated at fair
value in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. The
fair value of leasehold land and buildings, investment properties
and investment properties under construction are determined
by independent professional valuers, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, and the fair values of leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties and investment properties under
construction are set out in notes 21, 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from actual results.

In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions based on market conditions existing
at the balance sheet date. These estimates are regularly compared
to actual market data and actual transactions in the market for
similar type of properties in nearby locations.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based
on the credit history of its customers and prevailing market
conditions. Management reassesses the provision for impairment
of trade receivables at the balance sheet date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimations at the end of each
reporting date to ensure inventories are shown at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Recoverability of completed properties held for
sale and properties under development

Management performs a regular review on the carrying amounts
of completed properties held for sale and properties under
development. Based on management’s review, write-down
of completed properties held for sale and properties under
development will be made when the estimated net realisable
value has declined below the carrying amount. In determining
the net realisable value of completed properties held for sale and
properties under development, management refers to the latest
economic measures introduced by the local government, recent
global and local economic developments, recent sales transactions
of the Group and other similar properties in the surrounding areas,
marketability of the Group’s existing properties, market survey
reports available from independent property valuers, internally
available information and management'’s expectation on future
sales.

Promotional sales of certain properties

As discussed in note 2(q), the Group conducted a promotional
sale of certain properties since 2009. Sales consideration for these
properties included an explicitly agreed transaction price to be
settled in cash plus a lease back of these properties to the Group
free of charge. Of the explicitly agreed transaction price the Group
received a down-payment of 24% in cash upon transfer of title to
the properties with the remainder being receivable in future. As all
the revenue recognition criteria had been met the Group recorded
this as a revenue transaction.

Having considered a number of factors such as the overall state
of the property market, the prospects of the properties and
profile of individual buyers, management determined that the
collectability of the receivable was not reasonably assured at the
date of sale. Accordingly, revenue was recorded only to the extent
of cash received. Management reassesses the collectability of
the receivable based on the credit history of the customers and
prevailing market conditions at each balance sheet date to ensure
the recoverable amount of the receivable was fairly stated.
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82

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Share-based payment

The determination of the fair value of the share options granted
requires estimates in determining, among others, the expected
volatility of the share price, the expected dividend vyield, the
risk- free interest rate for the life of the option, and the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable. Where the
outcome of these estimates is different, it will impact the fair
value of the share option and the amount of share option expense
charged to the consolidated income statement during the vesting
periods of the relevant share options.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies
among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group
has not finalised its PRC land appreciation taxes calculation and
payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the land appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognised
these PRC land appreciation taxes based on relevant rules and
regulations. The final tax outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and these differences will
impact the taxation and tax provisions in the years in which such
taxes have been finalised with local tax authorities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings (note 32),
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents (note 30) and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Group.

The Group reviews the capital structure periodically. As a part of
this review, the Group considers costs of capital, its bank covenant
obligations and the risks associated with issued share capital and
may adjust its overall capital structure through the drawn down
of bank borrowings, the repayment of existing borrowings or the
adjustment of dividend to shareholders.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 5.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group’s strategy, which
was unchanged from prior year, was to maintain the debt equity
ratio to be in a net cash position. The net cash amounts as at 31

March 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

EXEmEE (&)

—MEMRAR  AEENLEAAGELEX
EREX - BRALITZFEBKREER
AE - MEEBREELR(BEGEEE
EREXRMR B RIENBEE D) R
RehFRAREULRZRHRSAE -
REAIZGEEERBRAT [
FEBAE -

HE2015F3A3NBILFE  NEBZ
HESE EFAR - BB SEBERLL X
RIREFEARN « R 20154F K 20144 3
A3TAZHEEFEMAT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx FET

Total borrowings (Note 32) EEmsE (HE32) (175,600) (301,000)
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 30) 5 : & RERRS (H1:30) 264,265 392,355
Less: restricted cash (Note 30) B ZIREIRE (F7£30) 100,000 -
Net cash 4 %5 188,665 91,355

The increase in the net cash position during the year ended 31
March 2015 resulted from the cash consideration received from

the disposal of a subsidiary.

BHZE2015F3A3NAIEFE 2R FR
AR NEEE —HNEAREWERE
REBRM -
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6.

84

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other receivables,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables, borrowings, and amount due to an associate. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments, include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk, and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors meets
periodically to analyse and formulate measures to manage the
Group's exposure to different risks arising from the use of financial
instruments. Generally, the Group employs conservative strategies
regarding its risk management. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(@) Market risk
(i) currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollar ("US$").
These currencies are not the functional currencies
of the Group entities to which these balances relate.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising
from the movements in the exchange rates of these
different currencies against the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group manages its foreign
currency risks by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates. Most of the Group's
business transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), US$ and RMB.

The Group considers there is no significant exposure
to foreign exchange fluctuations as long as the Hong
Kong-United States dollar exchange rate remains
pegged. However, the Group is exposed to fluctuation
in exchange rates of RMB. At 31 March 2015, if HK$
had weakened/strengthened by 3% against RMB
with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$5,436,000 (2014
HK$2,935,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of RMB-
denominated receivables, payables and borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6.

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash held at banks, the Group has no
other significant interest bearing assets. The Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

At 31 March 2015, if interest rates on cash held at
banks had been 25 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been approximately HK$807,000 (2014:
HK$832,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest income on cash at banks.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate borrowings of HK$175,600,000
(2014: HK$301,000,000). Borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which
is partially offset by cash deposit held at variable
rates. It is the Group's policy to keep the majority of
borrowings at floating interest rate so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note. The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of market interest rates
arising from the Group's deposits and borrowings.

At 31 March 2015, if interest rates had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, interest payment on floating rate borrowing
would have been approximately HK$439,000 (2014
HK$753,000) higher/lower. Interest expenses on
these floating rate borrowings would be capitalised in
accordance with the Group's capitalisation rate. The
Group anticipates that the impact on profit of the Group
resulting from changes in interest expenses capitalised
would have been approximately HK$205,000 (2014
HK$253,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Price risk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss represent investments in listed equity
securities and are measured at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
equity securities price risk. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a diversified portfolio of
investments with different characteristics.

The sensitivity analysis below is prepared to illustrate
the Group's exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date. A 10% change is used when reporting
the price risk internally to the management. If the
price of the respective equity instruments had been
10% higher/lower, the net unrealised gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss would
have been increased/decreased and the profit for
the year would have been increased/decreased by
approximately HK$807,000 (2014: HK$1,818,000).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from trade and other receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, restricted
cash and cash and cash equivalents.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group will place
its cash in banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

For the continuing operation, The Group does not have
any significant exposure to any individual debtors or
counterparties.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6.

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Most of the Group’s customers do not have independent
rating. Before accepting any new customer, where available
at reasonable cost, the Group obtains credit report from
commercial information provider to assess the potential
customer’s credit and defines credit limits by customer.
Credit limits of customers are reviewed periodically. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has established credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

For certain trade receivables in connection with sales
of properties, the Group has the right to repossess the
properties when the repayment of trade receivables of
properties sales is in default. The arrangement has mitigated
the credit risk for the customers which cannot be assessed
through our past experience and other factors to prove their
credit standing.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants, if any borrowing has been drawn.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s bank
borrowings, based on undiscounted cash flows (include
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based
on the earliest period in which the Group can be required to
pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect. The maturity
analysis for other bank borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6. Bt EMEEBEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBESEBS (&)
The Group's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as AEEVBEEZANAHBE N
follows: T

Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows: BB — RBEBEBELSRE ¢

31 March 2015
2015%3A31H

Between Between
Oon Less than 1and 2 and
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
REX —ER —FZEMEF MEELF k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THER THERT THERT TERT
Trade and other ERERREMD
payables FERTERTR - 210,039 - - 210,039
Borrowings and interest {2 &R EM
payments - 142,682 38,488 - 181,170
Amount due to S — &
an associate NGIE O] - 4,027 - _ 4,027
- 356,748 38,488 - 395,236
31 March 2014
2014F3A31H
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and
On demand 1year 2 years 5years Total
RER —FR —FEMEF MEERF ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAT FTAT FAT
Trade and other ER SRR EAM
payables J‘éﬁﬁﬁ’ - 214,400 - - 214,400
Borrowings and interest & kA BT
payments 47,600 87,524 142,675 38,538 316,337
Amount due to T —E &
an associate UNGIEQE] - 2,961 - - 2,961
47,600 304,885 142,675 38,538 533,698
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreement.
The amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were greater
than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band in
the maturity analysis above. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreement.

BisEkEEEEERBER (&)

(c)

RBEE (&)

TR A REIEFTIER R
1T B AR IR & 5K W5 5k P 80 195 T 58 X
BREXELZZIBAST - BRES
HERERAHNNXFEZNEN
Ko Bt hESESR LA EH
B #reh [$2 25k ] i AR 5% 5
22 o st RAKE 2B B -
EEW TRAWITHITERE LA
BRZBIEHE - EF181E - AR
TRERSRIBEE R GHEPTE I E
ERAHMERE -

Maturity analysis — Bank Borrowings
subject to a repayment on demand clause
based on scheduled repayments
AMBEA - REHEEREHEE

BERERERBRRZBTHEE

Between Between

on Less than 1and 2 and
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
BREX £ —EZWME WERLF i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET THT THL T
31 March 2015 2015%3H31H - - - - -
31 March 2014 2014%3A31H = 3,377 3,326 45,023 51,726

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, which may differ from the carrying
values of the liabilities at the balance sheet date.

ERABEBESERANARAMBARS
mE - AIREARNGEER CBER
mfE -
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6.

90

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s assets carried at fair
value as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 by level of the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.

See Note 18, 19 and 21 for disclosures of the investment
properties, investment properties under construction and
leasehold land and buildings, respectively, that are measured
at fair value.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
equity securities that are traded in an active market. Closing
stock prices are readily available from active market and are
used as being representative of fair value. As at 31 March
2015, the Group has these financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$9,660,000 (2014: HK$21,775,000),
which was classified as level 1 for the purpose of measuring
fair value.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BisEkEEEEERBER (&)

(d) Fair value estimation (Continued) (d) DAREMKE(E)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E F2E EIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 March 2015 M2015F3831H TER FTERT FET THExT
Assets BE
Investment properties BREME - - 939,994 939,994
Investment properties under EEEEYE
construction - - 68,670 68,670
Financial assets at fair value BBREZZRAAE
through profit or loss SRz HEE
Trading securities BEEE 9,660 - - 9,660
Total assets BEE 9,660 - 1,008,664 1,018,324
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1 E2 FEIE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 March 2014 R2014%F3A31H FET FET FAT FAT
Assets BE
Investment properties KEME = - 996,515 996,515
Investment properties under EEREYE
construction = = 67,536 67,536
Property, plant and equipment. %1% - BiE kiR
Leasehold land and buildings HELTHRET - - 117,159 117,159
Financial assets at fair value BEBREZZRAAE
through profit or loss SRz HEE
Trading securities BEEE 21,775 - - 21,775
Total assets HEE 21,775 - 1,181,210 1,202,985
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REVENUE

Revenue represents (i) the amounts received and receivable from
customers in respect of goods sold less returns and allowances,
(ii) the proceeds from the sale of properties during the year; and
(i) the amounts received and receivable in respect of leasing of
investment properties.

A

WABRNETEPZEMENRKRRE
KATIE 2 B Y YRR ¢ (i) & A 88
EMEZABEHA - R(NHEREME
ZBY K WA -

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Continuing operation: BFEREEK
Sales of properties YIS HE 19,989 39,426
Rental income el A 53,379 43,481
73368 L
Discontinued operation: [SF ek <4 F 3.3
Salesof pearlsand jewellery — BHH#EsE 159.477 268473
Total revenue UL 232,845 351,380
SEGMENT INFORMATION DEHER
The Group determines its operating segments based on the REBBREBHITESFAERARA
reports reviewed by the executive directors that are used to make WEEBTEHE %@’ﬁ%ﬁ

strategic decisions.

The Group has two reportable operating segments. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of the operations and the product
perspectives. Each of the Group's reportable operating segment
represents a strategic business unit that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from the other reportable operating
segment. Details of the reportable operating segment are as
follows:

(i)  Pearls and jewellery — Purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and
jewellery.

(i)  Property — Development, sales and leasing of properties
As discussed in Note 44, subsequent to the Spin-off, the Group no
longer carried on the Pearls and Jewellery Business and the pearls

and jewellery segment was classified as discontinued operation of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. ZHIER(A)

Segment information about these businesses is presented below: ZEEGE I DEERLT ¢

ik

For the year ended 31 March 2015:

BZ2015F3A31ALEE:

Discontinued

Continuing operation —
operation — Pearls and
Property jewellery Total
B8 24
REER — REEK —
LIS U HRH%E et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TERT TET
Profit and loss items wAREEER
Segment revenue o ERUT A 74,364 159,477 233,841
Inter-segment revenue B0z WA (996) - (996)
Revenue from external customers REMDEE ZWA 73,368 159,477 232,845
Segment operating profit 7 ERE B A 71,111 5,123 76,234
Finance income prlie 4,005 286 4,291
Finance costs BITE AR (1,608) (546) (2,154)
Share of loss of an associate eI — A QR &R @ - 7
Segment profit before income tax [ﬁfﬁﬁﬁmm o 2B F 73,501 4,863 78,364
Income tax expense SR (43,780) (2,979) (46,759)
Segment profit for the year/period NEE/HB D EEF 29,721 1,884 31,605
As at 31 March 2015 R201563 8318
Balance sheet items EERBRER
Total segment assets DA E 1,815,689 - 1,815,689
Total segment assets include: DEBEERE
Investment in an associate R—HEBE AR ZIRE 169 - 169
Additions to non-current assets FERENEE 2N
(other than deferred BREEFEHEEIN)
income tax assets) 64 - 64
Total segment liabilities DEBEE 876,108 - 876,108
Other information: HibgH :
Depreciation e (1,180) (2,874) (4,054)
Increase in fair values of investment & & ¥ kiR &Y%
properties and investment AREEE
properties under construction 28,697 - 28,697
Loss on disposals of property, HEME BEKREKEZ
plant and equipment 18 - (174) (174)
Provision for impairment of e E R RERE
trade receivables (403) (1,711) (2,114)
Reversal of provision for BERTERELIR
inventory obsolescence - 2,305 2,305
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LB WA B i A B wE
For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. oHER(E&)
For the year ended 31 March 2014: HZE2014F3A3MBLEEFE -
Discontinued
Continuing operation —
operation — Pearls and
Property jewellery Total
& BRIE
mE PHHKE BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(gE7) (&gE75)) (&%)
Profit and loss items B REEER
Segment revenue 2 A 84,297 268,473 352,770
Inter-segment revenue BoEz WA (1,390) - (1,390)
Revenue from external customers REIMBEF 2 WA 82,907 268,473 351,380
Segment operating profit D BB IE % 117,381 33,885 151,266
Finance income B s e 4,493 584 5,077
Finance costs BT TSR AR (820) (169) (989)
Share of profit of an associate FEAE— a2 D AR F 29 = 29
Segment profit before income tax |3f }iﬁfﬁmu 2B ) 121,083 34,300 155,383
Income tax expense BRAY (49,790) (2,804) (52,594)
Segment profit for the year REZ D F) 71,293 31,496 102,789
As at 31 March 2014 M2014%3831H
Balance sheet items BEEBEBRER
Total segment assets DEBEE 1,739,033 345,227 2,084,260
Total segment assets include: DEBEERE
Investment in an associate R—HEBE AR IRE 176 = 176
Additions to non-current assets EREEEZIEM
(other than deferred income BREEFERIEEIN)
tax assets) 43 3,021 3,069
Total segment liabilities DEBARE 807,495 93,259 900,754
Other information; HiEH :
Depreciation e (1,299) (5,657) (6,956)
Amortisation BgH ®) = ®)
Increase in fair values of BEMERTERIREDH
investment properties and RAEEE
investment properties under
construction 80,950 - 80,950
Gain on disposals of property, HEDE WENMREZ
plant and equipment WA 64 80 144
Reversal of provision for JRE Wi & G (B P 4 [
impairment of trade receivables - 6,797 6,797
Provision for inventory obsolescence i@ EA1E & & ] & = (1,357) (1,357)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8.

A reconciliation of the reportable segment’s profit before income
tax to the Group's profit before income tax is as follows:

/-\M-Bﬁ*’l' (mﬁ)

A] 3R 45 55 OB P15 % A S 1) B 72N 52 [ B
TSR m A 2 BRI -

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT FET
(Restated)
(FeE=5)
Total profit before income tax for AT ¥R 5 5 S0RR B 15 B0 A 48 % A
reportable segments 78,364 155,383
Fair value change in financial assets BREBEREALBEIERZ
at fair value through profit or loss EM% BEAALEE 6,607 (2,991)
Dividend income & B W s 871 1,231
Share options expenses B ER X (66) (171)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAG ZWA (EiE) 1,679 )
Corporate finance costs, net DR IR AFRE (3,340) (3,943)
Corporate expenses NRIFAX (21,598) (12,132)
Profit before income tax from REBRIEEEEK
discontinued operation BRET1S TR & 5 (4,863) (34,300)
Profit before income tax of the Group AEBREFELEEL 2
from continuing operations R PRAST AT & A 57,654 103,076

A reconciliation of the reportable segments’ assets to the Group's

total assets is as follows:

AHmENHEERAKREREEZ B
W

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

F@xT FAT

Total for reportable segments BE iyt 1,815,689 2,084,260

Unallocated: RAOME

Corporate assets NEIEE 35,856 10,434
Financial assets at fair value through BEBERRAREYEZ

profit or loss B T5 & 9,660 21,775

Total assets of the Group KEBEBEE 1,861,205 2,116,469
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

8. ZHER(HE)

A reconciliation of the reportable segments’ liabilities to the TSRESPABEHAEBRBLERE ZHE
Group’s total liabilities is as follows: AR
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHIT
Total for reportable segments EE & 876,108 900,754
Unallocated: RAM
Corporate liabilities NEAE 105,587 142,007
Total liabilities of the Group rEBBAE 981,695 1,042,761

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group's revenue
from external customers derived from Hong Kong and places other
than Hong Kong are HK$30,593,000 (2014: HK$21,317,000) and

HK$202,252,000 (2014: HK$330,063,000) respectively.

The Group’s two operating segments operate in the main
geographical areas and of which the revenues are disclosed as

follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2015

NARETEBNES - REBEAES
RBEBAINE T Z IR Z WA D B
530,593,000/ 70 (20144 : 21,317,000/ 7T)

%.202,252,0007% 7T (2014 4F : 330,063,000

)

o

AEEMELENMERZERER
HIABEEMT

BZ2015%3A831BLEE

Discontinued

Continuing  operation —
operation — Pearls and
Property jewellery Total
& 241k
R — R —
L/ES LIRKE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
Europe BUM - 46,166 46,166
Mainland China FREARE(TREES)

(excluding Hong Kong) 69,484 28,663 98,147
Hong Kong a5 3,884 26,709 30,593
North America JEZ=M - 39,638 39,638
Other Asian countries HhgmMNER - 15,034 15,034
Others Efb - 3,267 3,267

73,368 159,477 232,845
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s two operating segments operate in the main
geographical areas and of which the revenues are disclosed as

follows: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2014

8. oEBER (&)
AEBMBELESBEEZETEWE R
HWWARTENT : (&)
HE201453A31MBLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operation —

operation — Pearls and
Property jewellery Total
S BRI
e DIRKE WBET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET FHT
Europe BN - 83,576 83,576
Mainland China PEIKREE (TNRIESRE)

(excluding Hong Kong) 79,060 30,375 109,435
Hong Kong B 3,847 17,470 21,317
North America b EM - 79,800 79,800
Other Asian countries E A IE MR - 49,768 49,768
Others EAb - 7,484 7,484

82,907 268,473 351,380

The total non-current assets excluding investment in an associate
and deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong and places
other than Hong Kong are HK$295,000 (2014: HK$216,725,000) and
HK$1,008,949,000 (2014: HK$971,463,000) respectively.

Revenue from the transactions with each single customer
amounted to less than 10% of total revenue of the Group for the

years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

9. OTHER INCOME

URBEBREBAING S ZIERBEE
BETEER —HBE QG2 ERE
IEFRBTRAE) D Bl A 295,000 7T (2014
F 1 216,725,000 7T ) K 1,008,949,000
BT (20144 : 971,463,000/ 7T) °

HE2015FK2014F3 31 B IEFE
EEERNEPR S 2 WAL AERERIR
AL 10% °

9. Hftz

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET

Dividend income from financial assets BiBBE B8R 2
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEEE 2 REWE 871 1,231
Others Hith - 452
871 1,683
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10. OTHER GAINS — NET

11.

98

10. HBlA — F5

2015 2014

HK$’'000 HK$'000

F#&x FHET

(Restated)

(F&&E7))

Exchange (losses)/gain P& X (E518), A (678) 233
Fair value change in financial assets at fair  RiBIBRIR AL EIIEY

value through profit or loss MBEEAREEY 6,607 (2,991)
Gain on disposals of investment properties, HEREWEZ WA - HEE

net 2,362 =
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEWE  BEREHBZWA

equipment - 64
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZW.A(EiE)

(note 44) (Mf3E44) 1,679 Q)
Penalty income RUA 1,752 2,505
Others HAth 2,203 1,154

13,925 964

EXPENSES BY NATURE M. REESEZHX
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT FET
(Restated)
(KeE%)

Costs of inventories and completed FTENMHER TYE KA

properties for sales 12,645 29,585
Employee benefit expenses (including EERIMZ (BEESEHE)

directors’ emoluments) (note 12) (F¥3E12) 16,720 16,563
Auditor's remuneration % EREN BN < 1,730 845
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BERREITE

equipment 1,180 1,299
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEfS T ESRIAE 8H - 8
Provision for impairment of FEU & BOR BB

trade receivables (note 28) (Pt 5% 28) 403 -
Operating lease rental on rented premises HFME 7 KLHER S 669 444
Others At 24,910 14,443
Total cost of sales, selling and SHERA - HE RITHRFA B85

administrative expenses 58,257 63,187
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201593 A31 Bt FE

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 12. EERANBAX(BREEME)
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS)

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

(Restated)

(F2E%))

Salaries, wages and other benefits 4 - TEMEMIBER 15,395 14,991

Pension costs — defined contribution BEEZeTREBFGIER

plans and social security costs g R 1,259 1,401
Employee share options expenses 1 B B AR R sz (M5 34(C))

(note 34(c)) 66 171

16,720 16,563

13. DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 13. EENRSREBAEZHME
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the emoluments of the directors and the five highest EERTEERTMALTZHESFET
paid individual as are as follows: ™
(@) Director's emoluments (a) EXEM=E
2015
Performance
Salaries related  Retirement Other
and other incentive benefit benefits
Name of director Fees allowances payment contributions (note ) Total
HeR R3] B AR
£33 He Ath2E  fzRd B (RtE) @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - - T TR Thx

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (note ) BPIREE St (Wit a) - 1,629 - 9 841 2479
Mr. Cheng Tai Po note b) BARsE (H3th) - 1,000 - 18 - 1,018
Ms. Yan SauMan, Amy (note ¢) ~ EEZ/MA(Mizkc) - 977 - 9 - 986
Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman BZUME - 633 67 17 - 717
Mr. Cheng Sai (note €) Btk (Kite) - 1,104 - 67 - 1171
Mr. Leung Alex (note f) RIS (B3t - 1,825 167 18 - 2,010
Mr. Fung Yat Sang (note g BRELE (Hig) 119 - - - - 119
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (note h) BEEL A (zEh) 48 - - - - 48
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex YEmi s 220 - - - - 220
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming BURBLL 220 - - - - 220

607 7,168 234 138 841 8,988
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

1. EEREH

(&)
(@) E=M< (&)

BEAEBZHME

100

2014
Performance

Salaries related  Retirement Other

and other incentive benefit benefits
Name of director Fees  allowances payment  contributions (note c) Total

\ Hek HER Bk EfhiEA
B4 ik AR BacRe BAHZ (Fzkc) s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T

Mr.Cheng ChungHing notea) BRI 4 (Fifsta) - 3,000 - 15 1,704 4719

Mr. Cheng Tai Po (note b) Ly diEd) - 1,500 - 6 - 1,506

Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy (note )~ EEZ/ME (i c) - 1,800 1,400 15 - 3215

Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman (note o) 522350\ (M3 d) - o - 9 - 230

Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas (note i)~ Z88% 28 4 (Pif3Ei) 56 - - - _ 5

Mr.Fung Yat Sang (note ) BRErE(Mig) 20 - = - - 20

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex YTEns 20 - - - - 20

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming BUIRE A 20 _ _ _ _ 20

716 6,521 1,400 45 1,704 10,386

Notes B3

(@  Mr. Cheng Chung Hing resigned as a non-executive director (@ EPARESEAR2014F10A16H
on 16 October 2014. BHEFRITES -

(b)  Mr. Cheng Tai Po has been re-designated as a non-executive (b) EPARIREEN2014F10816H
director on 16 October 2014. FEIENITES -

() Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy resigned as an executive director on © BmAZNER2014F10816H
16 October 2014. BIHITES -

(d  Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman was appointed as director on 2 d) EENER2013F9R28 %
September 2013. ZRERES -

(e)  Mr. Cheng Sai was appointed as an executive director of the (€) EiFER2014F10H16 0%
Company on 16 October 2014. The amounts represented ZERTARIMTES - ZEE
his emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2015 of which REEBE2015F3 A3 BIEF
HK$576,000 was his emoluments for acting as an executive % - A #576,0007% 7T &
director of the Company. HEARRBBTES M -

(H  Mr. Leung Alex was appointed as an executive director of h  REBTLERN20146F10A16H
the Company on 16 October 2014. The amounts represented ?%ijﬁ'c?%ﬁA AIITES - %2
his emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2015 of which BREEHZE2015F3A3181E
HK$1,094,000 was his emoluments for acting as an executive FEME - MEH 1,094,000 7T
director of the Company. AEEAADIHTES 2B -

(@  Mr. Fung Yat Sang resigned as an independent non-executive ® BrER Eﬁf_2014¢ 10A16H
director on 16 October 2014 BHEBIFNITES -

(n)  Mr. Chan Cheong Tat was appointed as independent non- (h) PREFELLER2015F1 14 A%
executive director on 14 January 2015. LERBIUIENITES -

()  Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas resigned as director on 11 July ()  FEEEER2013F7ANAE
2013. FEE-

()  Other benefits consist of approximate retable value and () EnENeEEEmEZSOE
rent of the properties for accommodation and other related rEmBAEREe AR EMIERA
eXPenses. B -

(k)  During the year ended 31 March 2014, a director agreed to (k) B Z=2014F3A831HIFE -
waive his emoluments of HK$2,100,000 voluntarily. 2_1(%0 %O?%ﬁ_%‘\ BREMEMNS

, FEIT ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE
13. DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 1B EEREREBAEZHME

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#8)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEEHFMAL
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the FRAEBREAESHMMAL
Group for the year include five (2014: three) directors of BREAZQOATF: =F) A QT
the Company whose emoluments are set out in note 13(a) BEE BREZHMEERN EXHF
above. The emoluments of the remaining two individual for 13(@): M W& 220143 H31H
the year ended 31 March 2014 were as follows: EFEZEBMBALTZHES N
TS ¢
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Salaries, wages and other benefits 4 - TEMEMIBER - 2,900
Pension costs-defined contribution ~ BE 4 EREHKEEI R
plans and social security costs 2R - 30
Share options expenses RS - 171
- 3,101
The number of the remaining individuals whose BRTYIFMIREE 2 HER AT A
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: wm
Number of employees
EEAH
2015 2014
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2% 1,500,000 % 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T % 2,000,000 % 7T - 1
- 2
During the year ended 31 March 2015, no emoluments B E205F3A3MHBIEFE K
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, EETERNAZESTMA T (2
including directors, as inducement to join or upon joining the HBEE)XNEMNEBES  EAERS
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2014: Nil). HANASKRAINAZE B/ 2 4885k

BEBLA(E (20145 - £B) o
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14.

102

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FREHEAX
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT
(Restated)
(Fe=5))
Current income tax: BVERFRAS Y
PRC corporate income tax PRI EER 10,275 8,925
PRC land appreciation tax R £ 3 (B R 3,586 3,799
13,861 12,724
Over-provision in prior year: BEFEHBERE
Hong Kong profits tax EEMER (513) (733)
Deferred income tax: EEFTSH
Net charge for current year AEERZFE 29,854 36,985
43,202 48,976
Hong Kong profits tax BERAFEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2014: BEBENESTDIRBARER 2 A5t ER
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. AR TE R 16.5% (20144 : 16.5%)TH -
PRC corporate income tax REBEMRER
The PRC corporate income tax in respect of operations in Mainland BT REXEBEE 2 PREPERG
China is calculated at the applicable tax rates on the estimated BERBRITEN - 2ELEBENH
assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation, REFEMEFTERT S ANDEATERAE -
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed B2k KA IRER 2 FENB
profits
The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced B2008F 1 A1H A - BRIEBIEBH
by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC subsidiaries to BRA) T LR A - AR EBIRE AR T2 R B B B
its immediate holding company outside the PRC for earnings AEIEEERMNMEERERIINEEZE
generated beginning on 1 January 2008. A& B9 IR AR B R BN 10% TEH0T ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
PRC land appreciation tax

Land appreciation tax in the PRC is levied on properties developed
by the Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including cost of land use
rights, borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

The amount of taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before income tax as follows:

o B+ b 32 (B

PRz T IR ER T B AN R BB R AF
EZ2MmE Eﬁiiﬂzz%{ﬁuiéﬁﬁf
30% E 60% U - EFHETTATIIRBE
PR AR TE DA L & W) 5 PR 1S SR IR F0RR 7T H10RL
P (BIE L ERERA - BERAR
PrEMEERFAS)FE

AR [E IR 7 S2 BARR TS B A A 2 B
B

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before income tax FRER 1S B AT 8 A 57,654 103,076
Tax calculated at domestic income tax rate 1R ARS8 5 2 16.5%
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (20144 : 16.5%) 5T E 2 Fi1B 9,513 17,007
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries @A B RRT X 2 & 5,684 8,413
Tax effect of: Hgws
Land appreciation tax + I EFR 5,491 11,896
Expenses that are not deductible for IR i b3
tax purpose 2,218 6,025
Income not subject to tax AR Z WA (1,923) (1,443)
Derecognition of deferred tax assets 12 ERERR SE A B RERRIR AT
recognised previously HIBEE 15,204 -
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised A S AR R IAEE
previously (103) -
Tax loss for which no deferred income MARERELEFGHEE L
tax asset was recognised MIEER 1,849 945
Over-provision in prior years BAEEERERE (513) (733)
Others i) - 170
37,420 42,280
Land appreciation tax T ER 3,586 3,799
Withholding tax on distributable profits on 7<= & # B} B A
the Group's PRC subsidiaries A I 2,196 2,897
Income tax expense for the year REE SR 43,202 48,976
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

15. PROFITS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company are dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$11,209,000 (2014: HK$2,505,000).

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic:

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

15.

16.

KA IR R BEAG 2= R

RNATHEHREACRIE 2 AR FIE
FE 15 5 18 511,209,000 7T (2014 4 :
2,505,000/ 7T) °

FRER
B2A
SREFRMIRARD ARF AL F

RO T RA S B BT H BRI
BEHE -

2015 2014

From continuing operation: REFELCEEL
Profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company (HK$'000) RREREEEER (FET) 9,095 36,967
Weighted average number of shares in issue

(thousands) BTG N FEHE(FAR) 1,305,123 1,280,190
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) SRRERAEF (FRB) 0.70 2.89
From discontinued operation: RECKRIEREEIE
Profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company (HK$'000) RNARREREEREF(FHET) 1,884 31,496
Weighted average number of shares in issue

(thousands) BEITIR G NEFLHE(FR) 1,305,123 1,280,190
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) EREAET (FREN) 0.14 2.46
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)
Diluted:

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by the adjusted weighted
average number of shares which represented the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the period and weighted
average number of ordinary shares deemed to have been issued
at no consideration, assuming the exercise of the share options.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount for the
year ended 31 March 2015 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$10,979,000 (2014: HK$68,463,000) and 1,305,384,000 (2014:
1,293,734,000) ordinary shares, which represented the weighted
average number of 1,305,123,000 (2014: 1,280,190,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year and the weighted average number
of 261,000 (2014: 13,544,000) ordinary shares deemed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all the
outstanding share options during the year.

16. BIREF (&)
e

BREER N IR KRB RN NEFE
HEtE - AIRKREAC BT RO T
BB IR R B R 1T (1M 5 5 /= 4
BT EBRINETFI9E -

HE2015F3A3MBILEE . FR#
SER R Ty AR R IR B A FE T
#910,979,00078 7T (2014 4F : 68,463,000787T)
%1,305,384,000 B& (2014 £ : 1,293,734,000
) ERIRETE  IREAEEDBHITY
8 A% N #E F 15 #11,305,123,000 B% (2014
F 1 1,280,190,000 1% ) R AN F E FT A A A
TEEREHHRABITEMHEEEE
AT 2 @R ANRE T 19 81 261,000 A%
(2014 4 = 13,544,000 %) °

2015 2014

From continuing operation: REFELEEK
Profit attributable to equity holders of NN E R SR (FET)

the Company (HK$'000) 9,095 36,967
Adjusted weighted average number of shares TR D DR T B (TR

(thousands) 1,305,384 1,293,734
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) S A&#E & F (FROEL) 0.70 2.85
From discontinued operation: RECKRIEEEIE .
Profit attributable to equity holders of KA BRI R A (FHBIT)

the Company (HK$'000) 1,884 31,496
Adjusted weighted average number of shares KRR INETFHE(FR)

(thousands) 1,305,384 1,293,734
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) GRS & F (FREL) 0.14 244
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17.

18.

106

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014 Nil).

The dividend paid during the year ended 31 March 2014 was
HK$25,604,000.

On 26 September 2014, a conditional special interim dividend
was declared by the Board to be satisfied through a distribution
in specie by the Company of the entire issued share capital of
MS Jewellery, subject to the Spin-off Condition (as defined in the
Listing Document, that is the listing sub-committee of the board of
the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to deal
in, the shares of MS Jewellery on the Stock Exchange). The listing
approval was obtained on 16 October 2014, and the entire issued
share capital of MS jewellery was distributed to the equity holders
of the Company pursuant to the Distribution (as defined in note
44). The shares of MS Jewellery were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 17 October 2014.

17. k2

EFEeUTERMBE2015F3H31H
IFF IR R R (2014 4F : M) -

HE2014F3A3NBIEFEEZERNKRE
#%25,604,0007%& 7T °

MR2014E9A268  EF&
FRAIFHRE AR AREBEYD IR
REKEZHCBITIRA2EAZA -
HAGFOFBEEF(EER LW 8
ﬁiﬁﬁé%Atm?\Eﬁt/ﬁﬁiﬁk%
BRORERFAEMREE)EKERT
EE - EmHtEER2014F 108 16H
BE - MEEKEZHSHITIREADR
EoOIK(E&RME44) DR F AR B %
Ho R2014%F10817H REKER
PR R PT £ o

BIRA G

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW*
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At fair value BARE

Beginning of the year REH) 996,515 902,342
Disposals during the year FALE (916) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— B AR (125,000) -
Transfer from prepaid lease payments HE A EMNEERKIE 15,673 -
Transfer from leasehold land and buildings & # @M & + i RIEF 26,159 -
Increase in fair values N EEE 27,563 74,487
Exchange differences PEHZR - 19,686
At end of the year RER 939,994 996,515
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for
investment properties

18. REWE (&)
RREVNENBERBEI 2SR

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Rental income LW A 53,379 43,481
Direct operating expenses from property ~ REELSHESWA 2 WE 2 B
that generated rental income BERT (2,904) (3,313)
50,475 40,168

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2014 Nil).

@)

As at 31 March 2015, no investment property was pledged
as security for bank loan facilities granted to the Group while
certain investment properties amounting to HK$345,130,000
(2014: HK$330,962,000) were pledged as security for other
loan (note 32).

As at 31 March 2014, an investment property with carrying
amount of HK$122,000,000 was pledged as security for bank
loan facilities granted to the Group (note 32).

As at 31 March 2015, certain investment properties
amounting to HK$16,452,000 (2014: HK$29,198,000) were
pledged as security for a loan granted by a PRC bank to an
independent third party (note 40).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited at 31 March 2015 and 31 March
2014, independent firms of professional property valuers,
on market value basis. The valuations were arrived at by
reference to comparable market transactions and where
appropriate, on the basis of capitalisation of net income.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the chief financial
officer and group senior management for discussions in
relation to the valuation processes and the reasonableness
of the valuation results.

MR2015F3A831MH AEBEBEEFTEH
BRGEBERREMKAEREZAENET
(20144 : 4&) o

@)

MN20153A318  HEREY
X¥ERASEMERBITERRE
{E & 1K 38 & > T {8 {8 345,130,000
7 7T (2014 4F © 330,962,000 7T )
ZETHREMECHEMBERIES
TR (FFE32) -

MR2014F3831H —BE®ME
£122,000,0008 T 2K EWMED
RAKEFERBITERREIES
@ (FFE32) -

20153 A31H @ (& (816,452,000
7 7T (2014 5+ 29,198,000 7T) 2
ETHREDEEH —BPHBITR
F—R2BUEZ 2 EREAIEE
m (B5E40) ©

AEBKEYHEN 201593 A 31
B R&2014%63A831HB 2 BEJH
BN EEYEGHBEMITEERTE
RAGERMEREEER - EHE
D2BAERBEMSER S & (Hi#E
BIRFWERFTER 2 BEEFE o

AEBEMBHAE R BREME
B B B S ERME T 2 (518 - %8
BoERFREEGER ZEEKE
Py R mERAYHREREE
SREEERER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. BEWEE (&)
The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book REBNRKREMEZ RFIREETFE
values are analysed as follows: SITAT -
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHIT
Land and buildings situated in Hong Kong A& HIATHEI A 10E 5045
and held under leases of between 10 2T 2 T RIETF
and 50 years - 122,000
Land and buildings situated in the PRC AR E B AHEEA10E50F
and held under leases of between 10 ZHNFE 2 T RIETF
and 50 years 835,666 770,187
Land and buildings situated in the PRC iz pA R B B DAFH HARR 18 50
and held under leases of over 50 years ZHEOFHE 2 LW RIEF 104,328 104,328
939,994 996,515

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2015 using
R201553 31 AZAREHERANTEE

Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets other Significant
for identical observable  unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description # (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HREEEZE HUEATHEE EBEATIEE
[k U BAYE BARE
(B18) (%28) (%38) @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FEx FEr Tar
Recurring fair value measurements BEURAERE
Investment properties: REME :
— Shenzhen — & - - 170,730 170,730
— Zhejiang and others —IREM - - 769,264 769,264
- - 939,994 939,994
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

18. REW* ()

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2014 using
R2014F3 /31 B2 AR EFERAATRE

Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description Edr] (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BREELER HMEATER EATTHE
M5 RE HAHE BAHE
(F1E) (F2E) (B3E) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAL TAL TAT
Recurring fair value measurements BRMNAEH2
Investment properties: BREME -
— Shenzhen — & - - 124,740 124,740
— Zhejiang and others — IR EA = - 871,775 871,775
- - 996,515 996,515

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the

year (2014: Same).

AEERBANGBRNEHEFHREHS
BREABELEZECEARBAAEER

ZEARES -

FA-F1E F2EEFIF2EAE

EE (20145 - #B[A) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. REWX (&)

Fair value measurements using significant MEAS AR BERGARE>A

unobservable inputs (Level 3) AEHE(E3E)
Zhejiang
Shenzhen and others Total
i ipan
il K EHAth st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHT
At 1 April 2013 M2013F481H8 106,764 795,578 902,342
Increase in fair values NAEEE 15,281 59,206 74,487
Exchange differences PE =% 2,695 16,991 19,686
At 31 March 2014 A201453831H 124,740 871,775 996,515
Total gains for the year included in STABEBRZATE
profit or loss for assets ON--L- 15,281 59,206 74,487
Change in unrealised gains for the year st AERFIEEE
included in profit or loss for assets B AFERER
held at the end of year LN 15,281 59,206 74,487
Zhejiang
Shenzhen and others Total
T
=Y REAM st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2014 M2014F45818 124,740 871,775 996,515
Disposals during the year FAHE - (916) (916)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHB AR - (125,000) (125,000)
Transfer from prepaid lease payments A AN ERIE 15,673 - 15,673
Transfer from leasehold land ERaEE I RET
and buildings 26,159 - 26,159
Increase in fair values NI EEE 4,158 23,405 27,563
At 31 March 2015 A2015F3A31H 170,730 769,264 939,994
Total gains for the year included in STABEBRZAFE
profit or loss for assets L ONL- 4,158 23,405 27,563
Change in unrealised gains for the year st A FERFIFEE
included in profit or loss for assets B2 AFEARER
held at the end of year N 4,158 23,405 27,563
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n‘l—ﬁAﬁj‘%gﬁ%Mj IIIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201593 A31 Bt FE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. REWE (&)
Information about fair value measurements HRAERAEEG AZEZA
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) RETE(EIEB)HBER
Range of
unobservable
Fair value at inputs Relationship of
31 March (probability- unobservable
2015  Valuation Unobservable weighted inputs to
Description E3r (HK$'000)  technique(s) inputs average) fair value
FABE
R2015% HWAYE FABE
3A31AR il BAHE
DfE FABE (= meE BANE
(FHr) MHERE BWAYE Fi5) 2B
Shenzhen el 170,730 Investment approach  — Market rent —RMB2-39per square ~ — The higher the
RE+ —miEie meter per month market rent, the
—BAFEHX higher the fair value.
ARE2EITT —TEREARAIANE
g
—Reversionary yield — — 6%-8% — The higher the
—EBEYRE reversionary yield,
the lower the
fair value.
—EENEERRAAAE
A -
Zhejiang T REAM 769,264  Investmentapproach ~ — Market rent — RMB57-103 per square  — The higher the market
and others or direct comparison  — 5 £ meter per month rent, the higher the
approach —BAREAR fair value.
REFFERLBE ARES7 218 —msHeRRAARE
=
— Market price — RMB2000-3900 per — The higher the market
— @ square meter price, the higher the fair
—5IAK value.
ARE20002390T —MEARAARERS -
—Reversionary yield ~ —10.5% — The higher the
—EBYEE reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.
= fg l‘l&ﬁnf N ﬁ\] @
R o
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19.

112

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER

19. EEREWE

CONSTRUCTION
The Group
KEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
At fair value BAnE
Beginning of the year REA]) 67,536 64,452
Increase in fair value NAEHEE 1,134 6,463
Exchange differences E R =% - 1,581
At end of the year RER 68,670 72,496
Less: Properties under development B D EARBEEEESF
classified as current assets L3 - (4,960)
Non-current portion JEMBNES D 68,670 67,536

The Group's investment properties under construction at 31 March
2015 and 31 March 2014 were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited, an independent firm of professional property valuer,
on market value basis. The valuations were arrived at by reference
to comparable market transactions and where appropriate, on the
basis of capitalisation of net income.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. This
team reports directly to the chief financial officer and group senior
management for discussions in relation to the valuation processes

and the reasonableness of the valuation results.

The Group's interests in investment properties under construction
at their net book values are analysed as follows:

REBMEREEFEWEN2015F3 8318
F2014F3A3MAZEBE BB BE
YEGEMITEHERITERARIEME
EESMG - WEHEBEDNLRABLESN
BRSRE(WER)RFREBTELRZ
BEEEF -

AEEWBEHE R /WM B RS M= s
BIUHEMETZMAE  ZERHRGE
BFMMIEGRZEBEME M ®E
BRAPGRENEERRERERR -

AEERERREVE BRI ERE
FEDMIAT

The Group
rEE

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Land and buildings situated in the PRC AP B AEEA10E50F

and held under leases of between 10 ZHEHNFE 2 T RETF

and 50 years 20,286 20,034
Land and buildings situated in the PRC fZFA R B B DARE B8 38 50 5

and held under leases of over 50 years ZHHNEFEE 2 T REF 48,384 47,502

68,670 67,536
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER
CONSTRUCTION (Continued)

19. EERREW=E (&)

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2015 using
R2015583 A31AZ A A B EFANTEE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HREE HttEX EX
ER B k- FUBE
mEZEE BAHE WAYE
5 (%178) (%288) (%38) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FER TEx TER
Recurring fair value measurements BREUDREHE
Investment properties under construction:  ERIZEYE
—Zhejiang — T - - 68,670 68,670
- - 68,670 68,670
Fair value measurements at 31 March 2014 using
R2014F3AN B2 AR B ERAUTEE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HREE EfER EX
TER BE NBR
M52 HE BAHE BAHE
iE (E18) (%28) (#3E) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TAT
Recurring fair value measurements BEMNAEHE
Investment properties under construction:  BE T RIETF
—Zhejiang —T - - 67,536 67,536
= = 67,536 67,536

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year

(2014: Same).

AEBRBEANSBRNEEFHFREH
EREAEEELCERRABLAEER
ZBARBH -

FERFI1E F2EBEFIB2ELE
EE(2014 4 - M) °
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER 19. EEREWME (&)

CONSTRUCTION (Continued)

Zhejiang-
Commercial/ Zhejiang-
residential land Industrial land Total
HImE/
FERM MTTER @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT THT
At 1 April 2013 H2013F481A 45,633 18,819 64,452
Increase in fair values NAERE 752 5711 6,463
Exchange differences ERESH 1,117 464 1,581
Less: Properties under development B ABAREEEL
classified as current assets HEAYE - (4,960) (4,960)
At 31 March 2014 R2014%£3H31H 47,502 20,034 67,536
Total gains for the year included in profit or FANBEBRIAEE
loss for assets WA B85 752 5711 6,463
Change in unrealised gains for the year FAFERFEERE
included in profit or loss for assets held REERERPAE
at the end of year 752 5711 6,463
Zhejiang-
Commercial/ Zhejiang-
residential land  Industrial land Total
iDINSE V4
EEAt WITI#A% @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEx
At 1 April 2014 R201454818 47,502 20,034 67,536
Increase in fair values ARERE 882 252 1,134
At 31 March 2015 W2015%€3H31H 48,384 20,286 68,670
Total gains for the year included in profit or STABEBHEIAEE
loss for assets WA B85 882 252 1,134
Change in unrealised gains for the year SAAFRFEERR
included in profit or loss for assets held AEERERIMAZE
at the end of year 882 252 1,134
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201593 A31 Bt FE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER
CONSTRUCTION (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

19. EERREW=E (&)

RABERTAEEHAREBE 2L
REFE(E3E) HBEER

Range of
unobservable  Relationship
Fair value at inputs of
31 March (probability- unobservable
2015 Valuation Unobservable weighted inputs to
Description B3 (HK$'000) technique(s) inputs average) fair value
FUBE
R2015% BAgE FABE
383182 &[E HAHE
DME FABE (B=mE AANRE
(Fhr) fEERE BAHE &) 2B
Zhejiang-Commercial/ WIRE/EERt 48,384  Direct comparison  Market price RMB2100 per The higher the market
residential land approach mE square meter price, the higher
BELRE FEFRARE  the fairvalue.
21007C TERRAIALERR -
Zhejiang-Industrial land IWITEE 20,286 Direct comparison  Market price RMB600 per The higher the market
approach mE square meter price, the higher
BEELEE FEARARE  thefairvalue.
6007C MERRAIAAERS

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development held as current assets represent

20. BRPYE

FIERBEEZERTWEIIARRE

properties which are developed with an intention for future sale. ERENMBER Y -
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
At beginning of the year REF] 142,752 -
Additions NE 111,179 127,212
Interest capitalised B & A1 5,851 9,729
Transferred from investment properties EROTEEREME
under construction 4,960
Transferred to completed properties held — & AS{EHE 2L T %
for sale (103,796) -
Exchange differences bE X =% 851
At end of the year RER 155,986 142,752

Rk BBEAHIRAT ) % 1
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S50 B R B Rk
For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE
20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. BRHPYE (&)
(Continued)
The Group's interests in properties under development at their net REBNRERPYE ZERZERTF
book values are analysed as follows: BEOWNMT
The Group
AEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Land and buildings situated in the PRC AR E B AHEIR10E50F 2
and held under leases of OBz T HRETF
between 10 and 50 years 155,986 87,798
Land and buildings situated in the PRC fIrA A Bl B ATE BB B 50 6 2.
and held under leases of over 50 years MAFE 2 L RIET - 54,954

155,986 142,752
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

21. 9% - BERR®

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
BELHER il B
BT BTHE  BEREE ZERRHE HE @5t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TAL TAL T T T T
The Group by
Cost or valuation BASEE
At 31 March 2013 R2013%3A31A 119,728 15,281 34,500 975 7976 187,241
Additions AE = 658 1,310 613 488 3,069
Disposals e - - (2.897) (513 (554) (3964)
Decrease in fair value DMERE (3312 = = = = (3312
Exchange differences ERET 743 - 22 118 153 1,29
At 31 March 2014 R201453531R 117,159 15,939 33,195 9974 8,063 184,330
Additions NE - 1,457 608 503 487 3,055
Disposals HE = - - (554) - (554)
Transfer to investment properties ER\RENE (26,159) - - - - (26,159)
Derecognised upon the Spin-off PRER B (91,000) (8,070) (24,720) (5,297) (3,386) (132.473)
At 31 March 2015 R2015E3A31R = 9,326 9,083 4,626 5164 28,199
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
At 31 March 2013 R2013%3A831A = 15260 30,263 8,980 6,026 60,529
Depreciation charge REZH 3603 144 1,904 3% 90 6,95
Eliminated on disposals HERH - - (2,749) (389) (554) (3,692
Eliminated on revaluation SRS (3,603) - - - - (3.603)
Exchange differences ERER - - 265 107 133 505
At 31 March 2014 R2014%£3 8318 = 15,404 29,683 9,093 6,515 60,695
Depreciation charge hES# 1,605 204 876 509 860 4,054
Eliminated on disposals HE R - - - (378) - (378)
Fliminated on derecognition uponthe  HHREK TR
Spin-off = (6,282) (21476) (4,767) (2,565) (35,090)
Fliminated on revaluation SfhEHE (1,605) = = = - (1,609)
At 31 March 2015 12015538318 - 9,326 9,083 4,457 4,810 27,676
Net hook value REFE
At 31 March 2015 R201563831A = = = 169 354 523
At 31 March 2014 R2014£3 8318 117,159 535 3512 881 1,548 123,635
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 March 2015 and 2014 of

the above assets is as follows:

As at 31 March 2015

21.

W% - HERRE (&)

M EBEER2015F K 2014F3 3182
RASAEED T ¢

MA2015F3H31H

Leasehold Furniture,
landand  Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor
buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HELHR BE fRf -
BT BRRE  HEREE RERRG RE @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TR TiEx TiERx TiEx TiEx
At cost A - - - 169 354 523

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 March 2015 and 2014 of

the above assets is as follows:

As at 31 March 2014

118

L EER2015F K 2014F3 3182
RASEED T ¢

MR2014FE3 A31H

Leasehold Fumiture,
and and Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HELIR g FRffh
g¥ ETRE  HRREE  RERGE e &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
At cost BIR = 535 3512 831 1,548 6,476
At valuation RItE 117,159 = = = = 117,159
117,159 535 3512 881 1,548 123,635
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. ¥ - MERRZE(E)

(CONTINUED)

The net book value of leasehold land and buildings shown above
comprises:

S MEFREFHERRE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Land and buildings situated in the UREBBNUMEEBAI0ESNF 2
Hong Kong and held under leases of MABE 2 T RETF
between 10 and 50 years - 91,000
Buildings situated in the PRC and held AR B AHEIR10ES0F 2
under leases of between 10 and 50 years ~ FH#)FH 2 EF - 26,159
- 117,159

As at 31 March 2014, a leasehold building amounting to
HK$91,000,000 was pledged as security for bank loan facilities
granted to the Group (note 32).

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited at 31 March 2014, an independent
professional property valuer, on a market value basis. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to comparable market
transactions. The increase in value arising from revaluation of
the land and buildings of HK$291,000 has been charged to the
property revaluation reserve.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. This
team reports directly to the chief financial officer and group senior
management for discussions in relation to the valuation processes
and the reasonableness of the valuation results.

As at 31 March 2014, if the leasehold land and buildings had not
revalued, they would have been included in these consolidated
financial statements at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss of HK$47,319,000.

M2014%3 A318 {8 {&91,000,000%
T HEEFERAEEMERETE
HEVEE AR (FsE32) »

AEFEBEE L REFR2014F3 A 31
AZEEHRBELEEYEGEMIBE
2ITARARIEMEEESG - HEMR
E2RBRUENBEMERSETE - £
T MAEFEA Z A nEHEE 291,000
e AVESEREBAR -

AEEMBEHE R /MBS MEHH
B A EMETTZHE - ZEELEE
BFRGEBEERZAEEMY RHTRE
BERMBRENEERAEEERR

MR2014%3 8318 WHELHWREF
WEEITEMN - AIRE £ AR 25T
E R E B335 47,319,000 Tt AR A
B IRERA ©
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

21. M1% - BERRE (E)

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2014 using
R2014E3A3N B2 AR EFERAUTEE

Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets other Significant
for identical observable  unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description E (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HREETEE EREATER EATIHER
52 RE BAHE BAEE
(£18) ($28) (£38E) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL TAT T
Recurring fair value measurements BEUDNEE
Leasehold land and buildings: HELHRETF
— Shenzhen — & - - 26,159 26,159
— Hong Kong — &5 - - 91,000 91,000
- - 117,159 117,159

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year
(2014: Same).
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. Y% - BERRXE (E)
(CONTINUED)
Shenzhen Hong Kong Total
w3 B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHIT FHIT
At 1 April 2013 MR2013F481H 32,128 87,600 119,728
(Decrease)/Increase in fair values ARECRE)/ FE 6.712) 3,400 (3,312)
Exchange differences PE W =28 743 - 743
At 31 March 2014 "201453A31H 26,159 91,000 117,159
Total (loss)/gains for the year STABERBRIATE
included in profit or loss for assets (B1B)/ WAL 6,712) 3,400 (3,312
Change in unrealised (loss)/gains SFAFRFEEERR
for the year included in profit or loss ZAREFEKREIR
for assets held at the end of year (1) WAt (6,712) 3,400 (3,312)
Shenzhen  Hong Kong Total
3l BB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
At 1 April 2014 MR2014F481H 26,159 91,000 117,159
Transfer to investment properties AR (26,159) - (26,159)
Derecognised upon the Spin-off DRI TR - (91,000) (91,000)

At 31 March 2015

201563 A31H

Total gains for the year included in
profit or loss for assets

Change in unrealised gains for the year
included in profit or loss for assets
held at the end of year

BRI AR
WA 838

ST AR AT B AR
2 AEERER
Tox -
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22. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

22. EHHEERE

The Group
rERE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TAT

Prepaid land lease payments (note)

R LA E R ()

- 154

Note: Prepaid land lease payments are amortised over the lease period
of the related land. Amortisation expense has been charged to

administrative expenses.

BeE : R b AR E SR AERE it A B
5 o HESEF SN TT IR ST MHARR o

The Group
rEH

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
At beginning of the year REH) 154 162
Amortisation oo - (8)
Increase in fair value N EEE 15,519 -
Transfer to investment properties ERAREYE (15,673) -~
At end of the year RER - 154

The net book values of prepaid land lease payments are analysed

as follows:

BN L RERRA REFESIFTOT

The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Situated in the PRC held under leases of

between 10 and 50 years

ZHBBFE

AT EBEAEBR10E504F

- 154
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23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

23. R—EBEQTZRE

The Group
rEHE

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

At beginning of the year REY] 176 144

Share of (loss)/profit of an associate fE(E — B & A (B1B), & F (7) 29

Exchange differences bEH Z5E - 3

At end of the year RER 169 176
Current liabilities: MENBE

Amount due to an associate (note) JEASF — B & A B 5k IE (M 3E) 4,027 2,961

Note: The amount due to an associate is interest-free, unsecured and has
no fixed repayment terms. The carrying amount approximates to its

fair value and is denominated in RMB.

Unaudited financial information of the associate for the years

ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 was summarised as follows:

Mz : EN—HBEARTERER  BIE
MR EEEERY - REEEEAR
BERE  WAARBINE -

ZHE S N B RE E 2015 F K 2014493 A
3B IEFE 2 REEZ Y E BB a0
T

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Assets BE 5,071 4,617
Liabilities =L (4,227) (3,735)
Equity = 844 882
Revenue WA 3,348 3,219
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (FE), % (38) 145
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201543 A31 ALt FE

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
(CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group’s investment in an
associate is as follows:

Place of establishment/

23. R—EBEQT 2RE (F)

R2015F K 201463 A31H » REBR
—RBE AR ZREMNT

Proportion of
ownership
interest %
HEAEREMESR  Principal activities
LBl (%) EEXK

Name of Company operation Class of shares held
NGRS BRI, S it B Fris R4 5Bl
Zhuji Pan-Asia Property People’s Republic of China  Registered capital
Management RMB500,000
Company Limited
EETEMEERARAR PEARLNE AMERARE
500,000 7T

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

20%  Property management

MEEE

24. REB AR ZRE R EWH B

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES A RIFIE
The Company
NN
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERx FET
Non-current assets: EREEE
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LMD - A 211,018 211,245
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 281,513 281,513
Current assets: MENEE -
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E ] 23,293 10,036

The carrying value of the unlisted shares is based on the book
values of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries attributable
to the Group as at the date on which the Company became
the holding company of the Group pursuant to the corporate
reorganisation in 1997.

The non-current amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and not repayable within one year. The carrying
amounts approximate to their fair values and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

The current amounts due from subsidiaries were unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed repayment terms. The carrying
amounts approximated to their fair values and were denominated
in Hong Kong dollar.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 are set out
in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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25. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The followings are the major deferred income tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the year
ended 31 March 2015.

25.

EIEFT 1S B

AEBRBE2015F3ANBLEFER
RZIBRTEMBHREE(EE) RE

Revaluation  Accelerated ~ Unrealised Unrecognised
of tax profit in revenue  Withholding
properties  depreciation  inventories (note a) tax Others Total
&S AER REZMA
EfthE i HEER (Hta) RiI5 At st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tin Tin T T T Tt
The Group piS-o. |
At 1 April 2013 R2013E451R 175125 (17 2541 (14.431) 12,665 (374) 170,273
Net chiarge/(credit) to consolidated 118/ (BtA) AR
income statement 8 33,650 81 (722 - 2897 (583) 333
Net charge to equity IR TaiEt: 3 - - g - - n
Exchange differences EiZE 5,051 () (19 (351) - (14 4666
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3A318 214099 9 (3282) (14,782) 15,562 97 210,535
Net charge/(credit) to consolidated 118/ (;t A &AM R
income statement ¥ 12431 288 376 14,782 2,1% (102 2917
Net carge to equly el St y/f - - ] - - ”
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHEAR (1.777) - - - - - (.77
Derecognised upon the Spin-off ~~ AREL LER (11,532) (218) 2906 - - - (8,844)
At 31 March 2015 R2015E3A31R 213448 1) - - 177 o 20m
Note: Bzt -
(@) Unrecognised revenue represents the amounts of the sale (@) ARERBAIBEBEAEBEEEIZD K

transactions, with respect to that the Group transferred the title of
certain properties to customers upon receipt of partial payments,
have not received or related receivables are not reasonably
asserted. Enterprise income tax has been provided for based on
the full contractual amount of the related sales transactions and in
accordance with relevant rules and regulations even though a part
of the sales considerations has not been recorded as revenue. As
such, a deferred income tax asset has arisen from the provision for
such enterprise income tax.

BREE TR EEERREP 2
EXHERARR D AR U ARTR
BEAEIETE - REMARAER &
B HERBHARDERRA - 1ES
RREHER S 2 2HaNeBmERD
EEH - it WELRMEHER
EELBRLEMBREE °
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25.

126

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred
income tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance
with conditions set out in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of
the deferred income taxation for financial reporting purposes:

25. IEFEFRSH (&)

REFBERBARME A TERLEMRF
MEERABBEREFBGTERF 12
SRR IR EH - MR s 2B
FEFFSROMEAT

The Group
rEE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHEIT
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMSHAE 230,112 213,602
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTEREE - (3,067)
At end of the year RER 230,112 210,535

At 31 March 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$32,447,000 (2014: HK$26,101,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred income tax asset has been
recognised with respect to the total of HK$32,447,000 (2014
HK$26,101,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax
losses of HK$32,390,000 (2014: HK$25,472,000) have no expiry date
while the remaining tax losses of HK$57,000 (2014: HK$629,000)
will be expired in five years after the relevant accounting year end
date.
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S5 e A R R B Sk
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z%E 201543 A31 HILFE
26. INVENTORIES 26. &
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials ERE - 23,327
Work in progress TESR - 7,509
Finished goods B o - 47,446
At end of the year RER - 78,282

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group reversed
provision of HK$1,357,000. Such provision had been included in
cost of sales in the consolidated income statement.

HE2014F3A3NBILFE - AEEHE
#5 B % 1,357,000 7T » S EBED LA
AR ZHEKARF o

27. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 27. HELHEZRIWME
The Group’s interest in completed properties held for sale at their REBNRFELEZ BT E 7 EFIR
net book values are analysed as follows: HEEMSFESTOT
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings situated in the PRC R E BRI A10E50F
held under leases of between ZHANFE 2 T RIETF
10 and 50 years 146,045 156,125
Land and buildings situated in the PRC R E B AT B ABIB50F
held under leases of over 50 years ZHEAORFE 2 T RIETF 132,527 30,166
278,572 186,291
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28.

128

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. EWE KR H i fEWBRR
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables FEU & 3 2,625 76,001
Less: provision for impairment of B BN E BURE RS
trade receivables (1,402) (14,764)
Trade receivables — net B E R — 558 1,223 61,237
Deposits, prepayments and e -~ BAHIE R E AR ER R
other receivables 42,086 42,339
43,309 103,576
For the Pearls and Jewellery Business, the Group grants credit MEHKREBEEMS XEBHET
period ranging from 30 days to 120 days to its customers. FZEZEHEA30BE120H -
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables J"E‘Hﬁzif R E A E AR R BRA(E B H

approximate to their fair values as these financial assets, which
are measured at amortised cost, are expected to be paid within
a short period of time, such that the impact of the time value of
money is not significant.

At each balance sheet date, the recoverability of the Group’s trade
receivables due from individual customers are assessed based
on the credit history of its customers, their financial conditions
and current market conditions. Conseqguently, specific impairment
provision is recognised.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables

RAERE - AR ZERBEER
BEAATE  FHREHAXN &
VWEEAEEREEETE -

REZEER  AEERKEETF ZE
H&EM—MQEIEE@F‘“%?ZTE i
85~ BAESIROL I B R LG o BEZ
RABSRIRERRE °

R B 2 FEUE TR N At U AR 5K 2 B

are denominated in the following currencies: BN TS REL
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Renminbi AR 37,300 30,445
United States dollar ET - 53,669
Hong Kong dollar BT 6,009 19,040
Others Hfth - 422
43,309 103,576
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28.

(CONTINUED)

The Group has provided fully for all receivables where recovery
of the amounts is remote, unless the Group has determined
that such balances are not recoverable, in which case the
impairment loss is directly written off against the corresponding
trade receivables. Based on past experience and the Group’s
assessment, management believes that no impairment provision
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there had not
been a significant change in credit quality of such receivables and
the balances are considered fully recoverable.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

PR & R H At R U iR K (AR

ARG 7 P IR O B A B 2 T A TR U AR
REEBE  BREARERRBFER
AAimE - ERBERT  BESESE
T SR R A R - IRIBB KR
RAEE G EREREEARZ
SHREBELRERE L ANZEE
WEREEEXRYEEREE  AZF
EHEAR AR 2

KRB SR ERBZEMT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

At beginning of the year REF] 14,762 21,537
Provision/(reversal of provision) BB IERE (B EEE)

for impairment losses 403 (6,797)

Derecognised upon the Spin-off DR ETER (13,763) =

Exchange differences b H Z5E - 24

At end of the year RER 1,402 14,764

Included in trade and other receivables of the Group are trade
receivables of HK$2,625,000 (2014: HK$76,001,000) and their
ageing analysis based on due date is as follows:

TEARSEE 2 W E 3% H Ath FE UK BR FX
2 FE U & X 42,625,000 7T (2014 5 -
76,001,000 70) ° W ERFIREEIE A
ZEREDHTINT

2015 2014

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Not past due 4m 360 B 1,223 17,344
1to0 60 days past due BHI1E 60K - 31,143
61 to 120 days past due BAR61E 120K - 8,464
More than 120 days past due B H 120 KA E 1,402 19,050
2,625 76,001

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

RBH T RBE 2 BB IEF S R ZE T
REP  MESIHL SRR -
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28.

29.

130

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

As of 31 March 2014, trade receivables of HK$43,893,000 were past
due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. Based
on past experience, management believes that no impairment
provision is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality of these receivables
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

28.

FEWR & R R H A FE R BR K (&)

20143 431 H » EUE 43,893,000
BILABEERRE - thEREERRE
HETBIYEFEM MEFaHLE
BAHORTE - REBERLSR  EEEMRE
BATLER T AR E LR ERE - 10/
REZEFREEREEERLBEERE
B BZFAESKDER B 28K -
S ERKRE R BRE DI

2015
HK$°000
TERT

2014
HK$'000
THAT

BmE1 Z 60K
BEI61 120K
BER120 KA E

1 to 60 days past due
6110 120 days past due
More than 120 days past due

- 31,143
- 7,767
- 4,983

- 43,893

As of 31 March 2015, trade receivables of HK$1,402,000 (2014:
HK$14,764,000) were impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are in
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing analysis of
these receivables is as follows:

201583 A31 8 + fEUE 5K 1,402,000
75 7T (2014 4F = 14,764,000 7T ) B E R
BENEE - EAR B RERKEREZHE
FERTERI ZINEERIBEZ REER - It
LSRR Z BREE DT T -

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

91 to 120 days past due BHI9TE 120K - 697
More than 120 days past due B H 120 KA 1,402 14,067
1,402 14,764

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

29.

BREBESREAAREIRTHE
BE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trading securities, at market value: BHFEE HmE:
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong BELELTRERE 9,660 21,775

The fair values of the listed equity investments have been
determined directly by reference to published price quotations in
active markets.
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30. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH

30. FRHFBRSURREREZERR

EQUIVALENTS

€
The Group The Company
KEE AATE]
2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET FHERT FHET

Bank balances and cash RITHEB MRS 197,307 339,170 4,116 1,704
Time deposits TEHFR 66,958 53,185 - =
264,265 392,355 4,116 1,704
Restricted cash (note) ZRRFIR S (ME) 100,000 = - =
364,265 392,355 4,116 1,704

Note: As at 31 March 2015, HK$100,000,000 (2014: Nil) are restricted
deposits held at bank as security for bank borrowings (note 32) with
effective saving interest rate of 0.01% per annum.

The carrying amounts of the restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values and are denominated
in the following currencies:

MI5E 7201543 A 318 + 100,000,000 7T
(20144 : &) RRMRBIRITER - 1F
RRITEE (M) 2 ER M - LK
ERFEZEFHNE0ONEE -

ZXRERVENLRSRERBR S ZKRE
BRANAERERATIIEE BB

The Group The Company
AEE b N
2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT FEx TR

Renminbi AR 175,965 229,751 - =
United States dollar ET 11,707 97,139 30 30
Hong Kong dollar BT 176,506 62,645 4,086 1,674
Others HA 87 2,820 - =

364,265 392,355 4,116 1,704

The periods of time deposits approximately range from 1 month
to 2 months and they carry interest at short-term deposit rates of
below 1% (2014 below 1%).

The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject
to relevant rules and regulation of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

EMEFRPRANOS—EAZEMEAR T
Z - WIRIEN1E(20145F : BRN1E) 2
R A RE R -

A R A B 5 R 2 SINEE 6 3 Ik e SN B

RITERRRSEHPE - AETH
BT pLSNEE Bl 98 10 2 AR AR Al SOEHR ©
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31, B SRR E AR

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Trade payables ERTER 860 6,586
Loans from minority shareholders (note) ®EVEREZERZ (M) 86,938 86,938
Advance receipts from customers AR FFRIA 146,150 94,173
Other accruals and other payables HihfE:T B R R EMEER 221,616 220,797
455,564 408,494

Note: The loans from minority shareholders are interest-free, unsecured
and have no fixed repayment terms.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on due date is as
follows:

Mzt : RELBERZERASRE - EBIER

RN EFRREZ A 2 REDHTAT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

0 to 60 days past due BHI0ZE 60K - 6,227
61 t0 120 days past due BHI6TE 120K 257 50
More than 120 days past due B H 120 KA E 603 309
860 6,586

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to
their fair values. The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
are denominated in the following currencies:

FENEREEMENRR Z REERE

RRERE - BAHEK
ZARHEENA T ES SEL -

Ko EL A FE A5 R R

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Renminbi AR 365,423 294,576
United States dollar ETT - 9,533
Hong Kong dollar BIT 90,141 104,385
455,564 408,494
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32. BORROWINGS 32. 88
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current BN ER
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) WITEE (H:E@) 100,000 87,600
Other loan (Note (b)) HER (M3 D) 37,800 37,800
137,800 125,400
Non-current SEENEA
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) RITEE (FI3E () - 100,000
Other loan (Note (b)) HE 5 (5 D) 37,800 75,600
37,800 175,600
Total borrowings BEE®EsE 175,600 301,000
The maturity of the above borrowings is as follows: FiEEZEIBEAT
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Within 1 year —FR 137,800 125,400
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMFENA 37,800 137,800
Between 2 and 5 years MEZRFA - 37,800
175,600 301,000

(a) Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s bank borrowing of
HK$100,000,000 is secured by restricted deposits held at
bank with carrying amount of HK$100,000,000 (note 30), and
the Company’s corporate guarantee.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings of
HK$140,000,000 and HK$47,600,000 were secured by an
investment property located in Hong Kong and a leasehold
land and building located in Hong Kong with carrying amount
of HK$122,000,000 (note 18) and HK$91,000,000 (note 21),
respectively, and the Company’s corporate guarantee.

(@) RITEE

MR2015FE3A31H  REE A H
100,000,000 7T 2 $R 17 & B A BR
T & /5 100,000,000 7T 2 5 IR %
BITER(MFE30) AR Z B
ERERERR -

R2014E3 A3 AREE A H
140,000,000 7T K 47,600,000 %
TLZRITBED B AL R B BER
T & /A 122,000,000 7t Z & & #)
X(MfzE18) LR EBEEES
91,000,000 o 2 A& £ i R iEF
(H3E21) A R AR Rl 2 2 =R 1E
AR o
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32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

134

(a)

Bank borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 March 2014, HK$47,600,000 of the total borrowings
was classified as current liabilities because the related loan
agreement contains a repayment on demand clause which
gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any
time. This bank borrowing will mature in December 2018.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the loan has been
derecognised upon the completion of the Spin-off (Note 44).

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate
to their fair values. The bank borrowings are carried at
HIBOR+2.5% (2014: HIBOR+2.5% and HIBOR+1.9%) per
annum.

Other loan

The Group entered into a fund arrangement with a financial
institution (the “Trustee”). Pursuant to this fund arrangement,
the Trustee raised a trust fund totaling RMB150,000,000
(approximately equivalents to HK$189,000,000) and advance
the whole amount to the Group to finance property
development projects in relation to China Pearl & Jewellery
City. The loan is subject to daily interests at 1.3 times of the
People’s Bank of China 3 to 5 years interest rate and which
is subject to the review in each stipulated repayment period.
The fund arrangement is recognised as other loan and will
mature in June 2016.

As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of other loan of
HK$75,600,000 (2014 HK$113,400,000), denominated in RMB,
is subject to an effective interest rate of 8.8% (2014: 8.8%)
per annum.

The other loan was secured by certain investment properties
located in the PRC with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$345,130,000 (2014: HK$330,962,000).
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BA&
Number of shares Share capital
gnig - gE] ;&S
2015 2014 2015 2014
'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F A& TFAx FH&xT FHIT
Authorised: JERE
HREEE0.107 7T
Share of HK$0.10 each Z & 5,000,000 5,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER :
At beginning of the year REH 1,280,190 1,280,190 128,019 128,019
Issue of new shares upon TP AR RE R BT
exercise of share options % 51,416 - 5,142 -
1,331,606 1,280,190 133,161 128,019

34. IR AEE 2N
(@ MAEERERESEREE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

(a) Share options granted to employees and

directors of the Group
Share Option Scheme
The 2002 Scheme

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 2
August 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) was expired on 1 August
2012. Thereafter, no further options would be granted
under the 2002 Scheme but the subsisting options granted
thereunder prior to the expiry date will continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the 2002
Scheme.

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide incentives
to the eligible participants to contribute to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are valuable to the Group. Under the
2002 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to any person being an employee, officer,
agent, or consultant of the Group including executive or non-
executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price to be
determined by the board of directors being the highest of
(a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a trading
day, (b) the average closing price of the shares of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.

f A
BRETE
2002 51 #|

RN BIR2002F8 A2 HEEM 2 BB
BEREET 21 ([2002F 5181 ) - ER
20128 H1H [@im o 2 1& » 2002
FRIEBERDERE  B58T
REm B H TR T 2 3R 17 AR S
BERM - AJIRIE2002F 518 2
IRFRITHE -

00258 EEREERHTAE
R2EE  FRE/AKEELER
Bt WiEAREESIARERRAEA
BRI HRZBEXNAAEEER
ZER o ARIE2002F 518 - ARRA]
Exgn g AAKEER B4
AB - REFE[(BREARA R
HB AR ZHITHIFRTES)
ZEAALREBERE - AREA
RED  RBEREETIEE -
HE&DHEER THIFE : @ RER
BREREBRAWEARRSH)E
BRPTERGZIWHE () BRMDER
EBERERL M AARXSHE
B PrERIS 2 T E - R (o)
DEE °
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)
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(@) Share options granted to employees and

directors of the Group (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the number of shares
in issue at the date of adoption of the 2002 Scheme or
such number of shares as a result from a sub-division or
consolidation of the number of shares at that date. Subject
to as provided in the 2002 Scheme, the Company may seek
approval from its shareholders in general meeting to refresh
this 10% limit, but the total number of shares which may be
issued under the 2002 Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
number of shares in issue from time to time.

No participant shall be granted an option which, if accepted
and exercised in full, would result in the participant
becoming entitled to subscribe for such number of shares
as, when aggregated with the total number of shares already
issued and which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to him, together with all options
granted and to be granted to him under any other share
option schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiaries,
within the 12-month period immediately preceding the
proposed date of grant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options), would exceed 1% of the number of
shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.

The 2002 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing 2 August 2002.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant upon payment of HK$1 for each grant of options.
Subject to as provided in the 2002 Scheme, options may
be exercised at any time during the option period, which
is to be notified by the board of directors to each grantee,
commencing on the date of grant or such later date as the
board of directors may decide and expiring on such date as
the board of directors may determine, provided that such
period is not to exceed ten years from the date of grant, and
subject to any restrictions that may be imposed by the board
of directors in its discretion.

Details of the principal terms of the 2002 Scheme are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 4 July 2002.
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

(@) Share options granted to employees and
directors of the Group (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The 2002 Scheme (Continued)
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share

options held by directors and employees under the 2002
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the year.

34. LR BEEZ AR (E)

(@ PAEEEEREERLE
e ()

BT 8 ()
2002 51 &) (&)
TREEFNES KEBRN2002
FRETHEZARRBERELAE

B -

Number of Number of Number of
share options  share options share options
outstanding at outstanding at outstanding at
Exercise 31 March 31 March 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2013 2014 Exercised 2015
R2013% #2014 5 R2015%
3A318 38318 3A318
HRITH HRITH o RATE
ZBRE ZBRE ZBRE
RitAH T8 Eitidi | BAE #E BiTE BE
(HKS)
(&)
Directors gz
2 March 2012 201263728 2March 2012to 1 March 2017 201263 A28%
201763818 0.610 3,000,000 3,000,000 (2,000,000) 1,000,000
Options vested atend of year KT R BEMIE 1,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000
Weight average exercise price  AMEFHTEE HK$0.61 37T HK$0.617 7T HK$0.61 7T
Weighted average exercise price  © % BERRIE Y fniE
of options vested THTEE HKS0.61%7T  HK$0.6177T HK$0.617%7T
Weighted average remaining IETFSR
contractual life BNER 392 years 292 years 1.92 years §

During the year, 2,000,000 options (2014: no options) were
exercised and no options (2014: no options) were forfeited or
lapsed. For the year ended 31 March 2015, the closing price
of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates on
which share options were exercised was HK$0.83.

R K F E 2,000,000 B B #E
(2014 4F « I mEBALHE) B4 P
Ko REE2015F3A31H 1t
FE - BEBEREETEEER -
AT 2 W B & 0.83 87T °
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)
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(@) Share options granted to employees and

directors of the Group (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The 2012 Scheme

On 17 August 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 share
option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) under which the
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
persons to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject
to the terms and conditions as stipulated therein. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2012 Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years from the adoption date.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives
to the eligible participants to contribute to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are valuable to the Group. Under the
2012 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to any person being an employee, officer,
agent, or consultant of the Group including executive or non-
executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price to be
determined by the board of directors being the highest of
(a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a trading
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which the 2012
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the number of shares
in issue at the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme or
such number of shares as a result from a sub-division or
consolidation of the number of shares at that date. Subject
to as provided in the 2012 Scheme, the Company may seek
approval from its shareholders in general meeting to refresh
this 10% limit, but the total number of shares which may be
issued under the 2012 Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
number of shares in issue from time to time.
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

(@) Share options granted to employees and

directors of the Group (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The 2012 Scheme (Continued)

No participant shall be granted an option which, if accepted
and exercised in full, would result in the participant
becoming entitled to subscribe for such number of shares
as, when aggregated with the total number of shares already
issued and which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to him, together with all options
granted and to be granted to him under any other share
option schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiaries,
within the 12-month period immediately preceding the
proposed date of grant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options), would exceed 1% of the number of
shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.

The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing 17 August 2012.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant upon payment of HK$1 for each grant of options.
Subject to as provided in the 2012 Scheme, options may
be exercised at any time during the option period, which
is to be notified by the board of directors to each grantee,
commencing on the date of grant or such later date as the
board of directors may decide and expiring on such date as
the board of directors may determine, provided that such
period is not to exceed ten years from the date of grant, and
subject to any restrictions that may be imposed by the board
of directors in its discretion.

Details of the principal terms of the 2012 Scheme are set out

in the circular of the Company dated 6 July 2012.

During the year, no share options have been granted by the
Company under the 2012 Scheme.
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

140

(b) Share options granted to a consultant

(c)

On 23 August 2011, the Company entered into a consultancy
services agreement (the “Consultancy Services Agreement”)
with Magical Asia Capital Limited (the “Consultant”), an
independent third party, where the Consultant agreed to
provide the following services to the Company: (i) advise and
assist the Group in seeking and identifying an appropriate
target company for the strategic co-operation in the
development of micro credit businesses; (i) assist the Group
in seeking and identifying a senior executive with appropriate
experience and reputation in the financial sector; and (iii)
perform such other duties as may be mutually agreed (if
any).

In consideration of the provision of the services by the
Consultant, the Company agreed to grant option to the
Consultant to subscribe for 49,415,608 shares of the
Company (the “Consultant Option”), representing 4% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of grant of
the Consultant Option as service fee paid to the Consultant.
The exercise price of the Consultant Option was fixed at
HK$0.515 per share. The Consultant Option was vested on
the date of grant and is exercisable in whole or in part at any
time within five years from 20 September 2011.

During the year, 49,415,608 shares (2014: Nil) of the
Consultant Option were exercised and no options (2014:
Nil) were forfeited or lapsed. For the year ended 31 March
2015, the closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the dates on which share options were exercised was
HK$0.83.

Fair values of share options and
assumptions

During the year, employee share option expense of
HK$66,000 (2014: HK$171,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement in relation to share options
granted by the Company.
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35. RESERVES — THE COMPANY 35. e — A7
Share Share option Retained
The Company ¥ /N premium reserve earnings Total
B 138 1E BRERE RE & F Fohy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2013 R2013F481H 341,879 11,727 49,945 403,551
Final dividends (note 17) RERE (W7E17) = - (25,604) (25,604)
Share option benefits BRERR - 171 - 171
Loss for the year AFEER - - (2,505) (2,505)
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A 318 341,879 11,898 21,836 375,613
Share premium reduction Bl RE (FsEa)
(note a) (341,879) = 341,879 -
Issue of new shares upon TR TR
exercise of share options 21,527 - - 21,527
Transfer of share premium upon {T{ERREREE ARG EE
exercise of share options 11,748 (11,748) - -
Share option benefits ERERT - 66 - 66
Loss for the year TEEEE = = (11,209) (11,209)
At 31 March 2015 R201553A31H 33,275 216 352,506 385,997

36.

Note a: Pursuant to a special resolution passed on the special
general meeting held on 25 July 2014, the share premium
account of the Company had been reduced by the
amount of HK$341,879,000, with the credit arising
therefrom transferred to the retained profits of the

Company.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had pledged investment
properties and bank deposits of total amount of HK$445,130,000
(2014: investment properties and leasehold buildings of total
amount of HK$543,962,000) to banks or financial institutions to
secure banking facilities and other loan granted to the Group.

The Company did not have any pledge of assets as at 31 March

2015 (2014 Nil).

36.
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37. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

37. MR WM

2015 2014
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE&xT FHET
(Restated)
(5&=5))
Finance income B g ias
Interest income on short-term g HRIR 1717 50F) B Es
bank deposits 3,273 1,708
Other interest income E AR B 893 2,785
4,166 4,493
Finance costs B FE RN
Interest expenses on borrowings BEMNBMAX (10,960) (14,492)
Amount capitalised on qualifying assets EERBEZEN SR 5,851 9,729
(5,109) (4,763)
Finance costs — net BT AN — 5 5B (943) (270)
38. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 38. EAXREIE
The Group
KEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT FH&T
Capital expenditure contracted for but not 2 ETAMERPERA B FEHRE
provided for in the consolidated B BEARRY
financial statements:
Construction of property and ERMEMBEE i
land acquisition 25,537 108,769
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE - BEMEE
equipment - 770
25,537 109,539

The Company did not have any significant capital commitments as
at 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

MR2015F3A31H » KRARWEEME
KB AREIE (20144 « &) o
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. KEHERH
The Group as lessee REBEREBEA
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had outstanding commitments R2015%F3 A31H » REBIZN T 5 E
for the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BERZ T REEEHE 2 KR RFIE
operating leases which fall due as follows: e R AEENT
The Group
rEHE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Operating leases which expire: LT EE A TR EW
Within one year —F R 68 11,150
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRF (BEEREMT) - 21,758
From fifth years onwards FRFE - 20
68 32,928
Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to five years and MABREFAFHRE—ZLF MRE
rentals are fixed during the relevant lease period. BHEBRN S AEREAS -
The Group as lessor AEEERAEBAA
Property rental income earned during the year was HK$53,379,000 FRBREZ %M WA A53,379,000
(2014: HK$43,481,000). BT (2014 4F 43,481,000 7T) ©
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had contracted with tenants for M2015F3 H31H \ AEBEEMEFET
the following future minimum lease payments receivable under AIRH A ST E 2 AT AV R IR R X 1R A
non-cancellable operating leases: LW
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Within one year —FR 42,864 43,797
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (BEERME) 11,088 30,936
From fifth year onwards FRFE 214 -
54,166 74,733
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40.

144

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Company issued corporate guarantees to banks in respect of
general banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. To the extent
of such banking facilities, the borrowing of HK$100,000,000 (2014:
HK$140,000,000 and HK$47,600,000) was drawn by one (2014: two)
of its subsidiaries, respectively, as detailed in note 32(a) of these
financial statements.

The Group entered into a mortgage collaboration agreement with a
bank in Mainland China under which the Group agreed to indemnify
the bank for any failure by purchasers of the Group's properties in
CP&J City to repay the borrowings or interest to the bank for the
period before and up to the bank registering the certificates of real
estate ownership as collateral for the borrowings. As at 31 March
2015, the Group has maximum exposure on the guarantees of
HK$26,611,000 (2014: HK$27,443,000).

As at 31 March, 2015, certain investment properties with carrying
amount of RMB13,057,000 (equivalent to HK$16,452,000) (2014:
RMB23,173,000, equivalent to HK$29,198,000) have been pledged
to a PRC bank to secure a loan granted by the PRC bank to an
independent third party (note 18).

The directors are of the view that the fair values of these financial
guarantees are not significant.
Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company had no

other significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2015 (2014
Nil).
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41. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

On 18 February 2014, the Group completed an acquisition of
an additional 3.85% of the issued shares of China Pearls and
Jewellery City Holdings Limited ("CPJ HK") at a consideration
of HK$17,300,000. The carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests in CPJ HK on the date of acquisition was HK$26,538,000.
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
HK$16,759,000 and an increase in equity attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$9,238,000.

41. &

HIFEERERIRS

Wi — R R B 1 Bl 2 R SME R

R2014F2 8188 » A& B xR U E
FEREBRERIERER QR FEH
HEEBIRE W ) BEIN3.85%E TR
R {8 517,300,000 7T - R UL EE B H -
FEEEGRER CIEERERRRBEAR
26,538,000/%75 Z’KE.EEWL;\;'ET HXEE&
5 16,759,000 T R A A B BEAE A
FE(LREZR 12 11 9,238,00078 7T °

As at 31 March

MR3HA31H
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
Carrying amount of non-controlling Fr iy B FE 43 AR i 25 AR TEI (B
interests acquired - 26,538
Consideration paid to non-controlling YA FIRERER R E
interests - (17,300
Excess of consideration paid recognised RETNERZBETBERE
within equity - 9,238

Effects of transactions with non-controlling interests on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31

RS RPEBE3A3NALLE
FEARREBARBIGERITE

March:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Total comprehensive income for the period AR RIEEA AFEREIR
attributable to owners of the Company FHEN=EE - 80,737
Changes in equity attributable to owners  UWEEKIB A RFEIMEREEZ
of the Company arising from acquisition RATHEE AELERE
of additional interests in subsidiary - 9,238
- 89,975

RABBEARAR /% AR
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEATRS
(@) Key management compensation (@) FEEEBAE ZEHH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENREMETR 8,243 10,009
Pension costs — defined contribution — HE4 — THEMHATEIR
plans and social security costs IR 138 60
Share options expenses B A RE R 66 171
8,447 10,240

(b) The group entered into the following
material related party transactions, which
were carried out in the ordinary course of
the group’s business.

(b) AEER-—REKBEPE
TUTEXBEALRS °

2015 2014
Related party relationship Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
BEA LR RXEHE FET FET
Entities which are under control Reimbursement of rental charges
by a substantial shareholder paid on behalf
of the Company WERERZEE 1,549 1,902
RARF —REEREEH 2EE  Rental income from leasing of
investment properties
HAREYME A KA 1,181 =
Payment of rental charges and
administrative fee
YNHEERERE (405) =
Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, BRRNERE M IESRRFTREE SN - A

there were no other significant related party transactions.
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43.

44.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees. The
monthly contributions of each of the employer and the employee
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme being
operated by the local PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute 10% to 15% of the average basic salary
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

For the continuing operation, the total cost charged to the
consolidated income statement of HK$1,259,000 (2014
HK$1,999,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

(a) Derecognition of subsidiaries upon spin-off:

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group distributed
the Group’s Pearls and Jewellery Business to its equity
holders. Pursuant to a resolution of the Board on 26
September 2014, it proposed that the Group would spin
off its Pearls and Jewellery Business through the separate
listing of MS Jewellery on the Stock Exchange by way of
introduction, through a special dividend distribution satisfied
by distribution in specie of the entire issued share capital
of MS Jewellery to the Company’s shareholders, the details
of which are set out in the listing document of MS Jewellery
dated 30 September 2014 (the “Listing Document”). The
directors of the Company considered that the Spin-off is in
substance distributing the Pearls and Jewellery Business to
the Company'’s shareholders.

43.

44.

iR R 1E AT 8
AEBAFREEELARIERS MRS

MABEEFE((RESE]) - BES
AR ZEEMBUERAMENESR
B YEAKEZEENRARTHE - A%
ERaEEes BN 2 HRBERB R
AR 2 5% - BB B TS E AR
fEEMETZBBEHKERSEA
1,500/ 7 ERBIL S FEE B RS -

AEETEMNEARZRBRESATEE
MR EMN 2 BRE BRARBHGEZ
A8 o BB A BZA R MBI
[P ERE S 2 10% = 15% 1E H1EF
B ERKEMNFEME - AEEZ
ME—BESIIEEMR -

RBELCEEBM S EHRERERPR
B Z 885K 2K 51,259,000 7T (2014 £ -
1,999,000 7T) * AASEERAZ5HEIME
AR EETEIVEL 2 3K

DIFEGAILEENE QTR H
E—HEHEAF

(@) DIFRFERLERIMELF :

B E2015F3A31HIEFEE - K
EEBETRHRREEED K T
RoRBZEFEN2014F9H2
AZRER  ERAEEUNEBE
NBEBRAARRREEN D RRE
KB B ITRAZERIRESD
R RERBERBE R ATE LT
HMOIFELRIRBEL 158
REARE B H /201459 H30
Bz b Emset]) o A2
REERA  DHER B2
BKREEBDIKTARRKE °
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44. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(CONTINUED)

44. DIFRFRIEBIAMB AR H
E-BENRBELR (E)

(@) Derecognition of subsidiaries upon spin-off: (@) PHFFRIEBAMBEAA -

148

(Continued)

On 26 September 2014, a conditional special interim
dividend was declared by the Board, to be satisfied through
a distribution in specie by the Company of the entire
issued share capital of MS Jewellery, subject to the Spin-
off Condition (as defined in the Listing Document, that is the
listing subcommittee of the board of the Stock Exchange
granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares
of MS Jewellery on the Stock Exchange) (the “Distribution”).

On 16 October 2014, the Stock Exchange granted the listing
of, and permission to deal in, the shares of MS Jewellery
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, upon which the
Spin-off became unconditional and the 100% shares of
MS Jewellery were distributed to the equity owners of the
Company pursuant to the Distribution. On 17 October 2014,
the Spin-off was completed and the shares of MS Jewellery
were listed on the Stock Exchange.

As a result, the Pearls and Jewellery Business was presented
as a discontinued operation in these consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 March 2014 have been restated to present
such business as discontinued operation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201593 A31 Bt FE

44. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

44, DIFEFRIEERAME AT R H
E—REHBAE ()

(CONTINUED)
(@) Derecognition of subsidiaries upon spin-off: (@) DIFRFALLFERHEAF
(Continued) (#&)

R20145F4R1HE2014F10 A17
BHEMNEZE2014F3A318 1k
FE RECKRIEEEER 2 w7

The profit for the period from 1 April 2014 to 17 October 2014
and for the year ended 31 March 2014 from the discontinued
operation is analysed as follows:

DT
For the
period from For the
1 April 2014 to year ended
17 October 31 March
2014 2014
20145
4818 % BZE
20145 2014 4
10H 17 H 3HA31H
HiR IHFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Revenue WA 159,477 268,473
Cost of sales HEK AR (99,700) (173,205)
Gross profit EF 59,777 95,268
Other gains — net B A — 58 263 1,170
Selling expenses HERY (5,562) (15,627)
Administrative expenses THRAX (49,355) (46,926)
Operatingproft . =& 5128 33885
Finance income B sl e 286 584
Finance cost EURID RN (546) (169)
R L e 45
Profit before income tax R FIT 1S 5 B 4 1) 4,863 34,300
Income tax expense e (2,979) (2,804)
Profit for the period/year REAREEE A 1,884 31,496
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44. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

150

44, DIFEFR LB AT R H
E—REMBAE(EF)

(CONTINUED)
(@) Derecognition of subsidiaries upon spin-off: (@ 2% BALBRIAMEB AT :
(Continued) (#&)
The net assets of the MSJ Group as at 17 October 2014 were RAEKESEBEN2014F10817 18
as follows: ZEEFEWNT
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KR 97,383
Deferred income tax assets BLEEMERE 2,906
Inventories FE 86,360
Trade and other receivables R LS 3k R L it R LA BR K 113,558
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRE 57,731
Trade and other payables FEA & 3% E At FE AT BR X (42,007)
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFR SR B E (3,615)
Borrowings B (46,400)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEAE (11,750)
Net assets derecognised upon the Spin-off DR IR 2 EEFE 254,172
Special dividend (Note 17) FERIAR B (HI5E17) 254,172
Net cash outflow upon Spin-off DI 2SN FE
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEER 57,731

The cash flows for the period from 1 April 2014 to 17 October
2014 and for the year ended 31 March 2014 from the

discontinued operation is analysed as follows:

MR20145F4A1HE2014F10 817
BEMNEZE2014F3A318 1k
FE RECKRIEEEEK RS

MEATAT
For the
period from For the
1 April 2014 to year ended
17 October 31 March
2014 2014
Mn2014 %
4818 S
20145 2014 4
10817 H 3A31H
A LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&TT
Operating cash flows KREFERE (107,275) 22,520
Investing cash flows KERSRE (2,389) (95,429)
Financing cash flows BERSRE (1,200) 47,600
Total cash flows RIREME (110,864) (25,309)
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LR B WA B i A B wE
For the year ended 31 March 2015 = 201593 A31 Bt FE
44. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON 44. DIFERILEZREBE AT R H
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY E—EHRB AR (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Derecognition of subsidiaries upon spin-off: @) AHFRLBEIMBERR
(Continued) (#&)
The Group entered into an agreement with an independent RE Eﬁif% B E=HEISW
third party to dispose of its entire equity interests in Swift HUALREARRRIZENB AR
Millions Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, ERERATEMARE  BRE
for a total consideration of HK$123,850,000 which was 123,850,000/ 7T T 4% £ & H R
determined with reference to its financial position as at 16 2015633168 2 M ISR & 8
March 2015. The disposal was completed on 16 March 2015. E o HEBR2015F3816A MK °
(b) Disposal of a subsidiary: (b) HE—REMKELTR :
16 March 2015
20153 16 H
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration received DWESKRE 123,850
Analysis of assets and liabilities over REEFIE2EERABDN
which control was lost:
Investment properties "B 125,000
Trade and other receivables, prepayments e & 3k K Eoth g U BR 30 -
and deposits T RIBE R 257
Trade and other payables FEAT & 30 % B FE TR 5K (1,187)
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFRS R B & (122)
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEMSHARE (1,777)
Netassets disposedof  FiMeAEEFE 122171
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FNBRR Z A 1,679
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of HE—RHNBARMREL
a subsidiary RERANFE
Cash and cash equivalents received PURERERES 123,850
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. T EME QAT ER

Percentage

of equity

attributable

Place of Nominal value to the Group
establishment/ of issued (note 1)
principal place of share capital/ TEE
operations registered capital i ES

Name of subsidiary Rz 2R B2 Principal activities

MEAREH TELEME BA/AMEREE (M) EEER

China Pearls and Jewellery PRC Registered capital 65.85%  Property development and

International City Co. Ltd. H US$30,000,000 investment
(note 3) EMER MERRREE
FEERERKRERER AT 30,000,000 70
(FIzE3)
Man Hing Industry PRC Registered capital 100%  Property investment
Development (Shenzhen) s HK$29,600,000 MERE
Co., Ltd. (note 3) AR
REEZZE(RI)BRAF 29,600,000 7T
(Bf=E3)
Man Sang Jewellery Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited o HK$500 REER
REKBEARAF Deferred share
HK$500 (note 2)
TR 5004 7T
EERR 17 5008 7T
(PBFzE2)
Market Leader Technology British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding and
Limited Hong Kong Us$100 trading of equity securities
RERLES/ LR 1003 TT REZEREBRAEZFRR S
B8

Notes: FiE

1. The Company directly holds the interests in Market Leader 1. A R @ B # # B Market Leader
Technology Limited. All other interests shown above are indirectly Technology Limited 2 # z » LT B
held by the Company. HivEm RAR B MERES -

2. The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to 2. IS RRIRTEAR () B R - 3 f8 42 ) YER
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general EE - INERWKEE R AR RRRRS
meeting of the company or to participate in any distribution on ZREXHFEZRAGINE LKRE - TF
winding up. ERED2HEEMERDK

3. These companies were registered in the PRC as wholly-owned 3. ZERTARMPRPEEAMZINEEEDR
foreign enterprises. ¥o
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RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March
HZ3A831HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHET FET FHET
(Restated)
(& E5)
(Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
(Btzxa) (FifzEa) (Pf3ED) (KizED) (Pf3Eb)
Revenue WA 73,368 82,907 461,185 370,236 401,854
Profit before income tax BR P15 5 A A 57,654 103,076 112,077 122,209 92,426
Income tax expense IR Liib (43,202) (48,976) (47,810) 42,112) (29,037)
Profit for the year from AEEREFELE
continuing operations iyl 14,452 54,100 64,267 80,097 63,389
Profit for the year from REERBELERIE
discontinued operations REE 2w T 1,884 31,496 - - -
Profit for the year NEF 16,336 85,596 64,267 80,097 63,389
Profit attributable to: BEHEERF
Equity holders of the Company RARIME 10,979 68,463 48,244 54,845 55,077
Non-controlling interests FEE A 5,357 17,133 16,023 25,252 8,312
16,336 85,596 64,267 80,097 63,389
Dividend per share TR E
Interim dividend HHIR B THKcents 3 HKcents
- - 1784l 37 =
Special interim dividend 5 RI R EBARL B, 15 HK cents
- - 1571 = =
Proposed final dividend R R IR 2 2HKcents  2HKcents
- - 2741l 274l =
Proposed special dividend B RIR 2 20 HK cents
- = = 205841l =

18 HK cents 25 HK cents
- - 18711l 25711l *
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEREE
At 31 March
R3A31H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET FHET FHET FHET
(Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
(Mizxa) (FizEa) (FFzED) (BtzED) (FFzED)
Total assets BEE 1,861,205 2,116,469 2,001,689 2,373,081 2,108,538
Total liabilities BafE (981,695)  (1,042,761) (998,847) (953,811) (785,197)
Non-controlling interests iz (151,429) (146,072) (139,748) (148,694) (115,430)
Equity attributable to equity ARAREEIEER
holders of the Company 728,081 927,636 863,094 1,270,576 1,207,911
Notes: BiEE -

(@  The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial (@  WBEF @B FEMBRE -
statements.

(o)  The financial figures were extracted from the 2014 annual report. No (b)) BB EF I8k 52014 F F 3], - K201 =
separate disclosures of continuing operation and discontinued operation 2013F - WEBFERFELEEBRDLK
were made on the financial figures for 2011 to 2013. ISR 2 B HT -
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Principal Properties
FEYE

Below is a schedule of investment properties held by the Group in Hong

R2015F3A318 » KREBEMNREE KF K

Kong and the PRC as at 31 March 2015: ZIEMEWERNT ¢
Location Description and Tenure (note) Use Group's Interest
1t B W K 6 58 (Pt E) R FrEBEFGER
Group |
E—8
27 blocks of Man Sang Industrial City, The property has a total gross floor area Factories and dwellings 100%
Min Sheng Main Road, Gong Ming of approximately 75,771.43 square for lease
Zhen, Bao An District, Shenzhen, metres.
the PRC
The properties are held under medium
lease.
HBIRYIT ZYEHEEEER IREEEHEE 100%
R BN 7577143 7% -
RERBRAETEH27ERIE
ZMEAPBRENRFE -
24 shops/booths of Market Centre of The properties have a total gross floor Commercial booths 100%
Phase I, CP&J City in Shanxiahu area of approximately 11,581.1 square and shops for lease
Town, Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the metres.
PRC
The properties are held under medium
lease.
HENTE ZEYFBEEREE [SES IS Gl 100%
FEML T HRE #911,581.1FF % -
EFFRRERE B
R 55 24 s, Ea ZEMEAFERLOEE -
Part of Market Centre of Phase |, The properties have a total gross floor Commercial booths 65.85%
CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, area of approximately 48,960.6 square and shops for lease
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under medium
lease.
FENTE ZEYFBEEEE PN REASE 65.85%
FEM L TR #748,960.6 F % -
ER PR IREM
E—HEH X HTS ZEMEAFERLOEE -
Part of factory buildings of Phase |, The property has a total gross floor area Factories for lease 65.85%
CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, of approximately 21,240.4 square
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under medium
lease.
BT A ZEVFEREEE IHHEE 65.85%
HEM L TR #121,2804F K -
ER PR IREMN

F—HEMOITE

HEWEATIRORE -

RABBARAT /% AR

155



Principal Properties

FEEYE

Location Description and Tenure (note) Use Group’s Interest
o B LR K S5 (R aE) R KEBATLER
Part of composite building of Phase I, The property has a total gross floor area Commercial building 65.85%
CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, of approximately 21,235.4 square for lease
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under long lease.
BT A ZEVFERARRE EERHE 65.85%
EEmIL TR #121,2354F 3K o
FERBIRIREMR
E—MEHNiFEE GZEMENRBBEORE -
Group Il
|
Industrial Land, Phase I, CP&/ City, The properties has a total site area of Land under 65.85%
Shanxiahu Town, Zhuiji, Zhejiang approximately 26,589.3 square development in
Province, the PRC meters. planning stage
The property is held under medium lease.
R BUATT A ZEVMEBIGHER ERREIERZ 65.85%
EEWILTHE #)26,589.3F 5K ° BRP L
ERERKRER
T ERN ZEMEAFBBEOFE -
Commercial/residential land, Phase I, The properties have a total site area Land under 65.85%
CP&J City, Shanxiahu Town, Zhuiji, of approximately 18,097.2 square development in
Zhejiang Province, the PRC meters. planning stage
The property is held under long lease.
BT A ZEVEBIGHER BRREIRER 2 65.85%
FEMIL TR #)18,097.2F 5K » BRBLH
ZERRERIREMNE — 1
mE/EER GLEMENRIBEOEE -
Notes: BitsE

A AHBB50F  PHAHZHEENF10
E504F o

Long lease represents the lease of over 50 years; medium lease represents the
lease of between 10 years and 50 years.
Group | - Investment properties held by the Group in the PRC FE—H-AEEETRBEZREME

Group Il - Investment properties under construction held by the Group inthe PRC (8- AEBTHEFE 2 TRIREYZE
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